
-1-

CITY OF ONTARIO 
DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 

AGENDA 

June 17, 2019

 All documents for public review are on file in the Planning Department
located in City Hall at 303 East “B” St., Ontario, CA  91764.

MEETING WILL BE HELD AT 1:30 PM IN ONTARIO CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
LOCATED AT 303 East “B” St. 

Scott Ochoa, City Manager 
Scott Murphy, Executive Director, Development Agency 
John P. Andrews, Executive Director, Economic Development  
Kevin Shear, Building Official 
Cathy Wahlstrom, Planning Director  
Khoi Do, City Engineer 
Chief Derek Williams, Police Department 
Fire Marshal Paul Ehrman, Fire Department 
Scott Burton, Utilities General Manager 
Julie Bjork, Executive Director, Housing and Neighborhood Preservation 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Citizens wishing to address the Development Advisory Board on any matter that is not on the 
agenda may do so at this time.  Please state your name and address clearly for the record and 
limit your remarks to five minutes. 

Please note that while the Development Advisory Board values your comments, the members 
cannot respond nor take action until such time as the matter may appear on the forthcoming 
agenda. 



 
 

-2- 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 
For each of the items listed below the public will be provided an opportunity to speak.  After a staff 
report is provided, the chairperson will open the public hearing.  At that time the applicant will be 
allowed five (5) minutes to make a presentation on the case.  Members of the public will then be allowed 
five (5) minutes each to speak.  The Development Advisory Board may ask the speakers questions 
relative to the case and the testimony provided.  The question period will not count against your time 
limit.  After all persons have spoken, the applicant will be allowed three minutes to summarize or rebut 
any public testimony.  The chairperson will then close the public hearing portion of the hearing and 
deliberate the matter. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
 
A. MINUTES APPROVAL 
 

Development Advisory Board Minutes of May 20, 2019, approved as written. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS  

 
B. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND VARIANCE REVIEW FOR FILE NO. 

PVAR19-003: A Variance to deviate from the minimum front building setback, from 30 
feet to 25 feet, and from the interior side setback, from 10 feet to 5 feet, in conjunction with 
the construction of an attached duplex on 0.141 acres of land located at 519 North Grove 
Avenue, within the MDR-18 (Medium Density Residential – 11.1 to 18.0 DU/Acre) zoning 
district. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 3 (Class 15303, New Construction 
or Conversion of Small Structures) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is 
located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and was 
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario 
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 1048-451-09) 
submitted by GMK Construction. Planning Commission action is required.  

  
1. CEQA Determination    

 
No action necessary – Exempt:  CEQA Guidelines Section 3 (Class 15303) 
       

2. File No. PVAR19-003 (Variance Review) 
 

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 
 

C. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP REVIEW 
FOR FILE NO. PMTT18-001: A Tentative Parcel Map (TPM 19936) to subdivide 51.9 
acres of land into two parcels, located at 5100 East Jurupa Avenue and 5171 East Francis 
Street, within the (IH) Heavy Industrial and (UC) Utilities Corridor zoning districts. The 
project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15315 (Minor Land Divisions) of the CEQA 
Guidelines.  The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and 
criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). 



 
 

-3- 

(APNs: 238-132-24) submitted by New-Indy Ontario, LLC. Planning Commission 
action is required. 
 
1. CEQA Determination    

 
No action necessary – Exempt:  CEQA Guidelines § 15315  
       

2. File No. PMTT18-001 (Tentative Parcel Map, TPM 19936)  
 

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 
 

D. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP, AND 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NOS. PMTT19-001 (PM 19993) and 
PDEV19-004: A Tentative Parcel Map (File No. PMTT19-001/TM 19993) to subdivide 
10.68 acres of land into two parcels, in conjunction with a Development Plan (File No. 
PDEV19-004) to construct one multitenant commercial building totaling 5,000 square feet, 
located at the southwest corner of Via Turin and Fourth Street, at 4170 East Fourth Street, 
within the Retail land use district of the Piemonte Overlay District of the Ontario Center 
Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in 
conjunction with File No. PSPA16-003, a Specific Plan Amendment for which a Mitigated 
Negative Declaration was previously adopted by the City Council on May 16, 2017. This 
application introduces no new significant environmental impacts and all previously-
adopted mitigation measures are a condition of project approval. The proposed project is 
located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was 
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario 
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 0210-204-27) 
submitted by Ontario Covenant Group, LLC. Planning Commission action is 
required. 

 
1. CEQA Determination    

 
No action necessary – use of previously adopted Mitigated Negative Declaration 
       

2. File No. PMTT19-001 (Tentative Parcel Map, TM 19993)  
 
        Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 
 

3. File No. PDEV19-004 (Development Plan)  
 
        Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 
 
E. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, DEVELOPMENT PLAN, AND 
 CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REVIEW FOR FILE NOS. PDEV19-019 AND 
 PCUP19-007: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV19-019) and Conditional Use 
 Permit (File No. PCUP19-007) to establish and construct a nonstealth wireless 
 telecommunications facility (Verizon Wireless) on an existing SCE transmission tower 
 and related equipment enclosure on 4.7 acres of land located at 3210 East Merrill 
 Avenue, within the SCE Corridor land use district of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The 
 project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 





CITY OF ONTARIO 

Development Advisory Board 

Minutes 

May 20, 2019

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

Charles Mercier, acting Chairman, Planning Department 
Kevin Shear, Building Department  
Paul Ehrman, Fire Department  
Joe De Sousa, Housing and Neighborhood Preservation  
Ahmed Aly, Municipal Utilities Company  
Doug Sorel, Police Department  
Jesus Plasencia, Engineering Department 

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT 

Charity Hernandez, Economic Development  

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT 

Jeanie Aguilo, Planning Department 
Maureen Duran, Planning Department 
Naiim Khoury, Engineering Department 
Lorena Mejia, Planning Department 
Alexis Vaughn, Planning Department 
Derrick Womble, Development Administration 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

No one responded from the audience. 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  Motion to approve the minutes of  the May 6,  2019,  meeting  of  the
Development Advisory Board was made by Mr. Shear; seconded by Mr. Sorel; and approved
unanimously by those present (5-0).  Mr. Aly and Mr. Plasencia recused themselves as they did not
attend the meeting.

Item A - 1 of 4



Development Advisory Board 
Minutes –May 20, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 
 
B. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW, AND 
 CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR FILE NOS. PDEV18-027 AND PCUP18-028: A 
 Development Plan (File No. PDEV18-027) to construct an 83,500-square foot hotel with 
 conference rooms, fitness center, pool, and restaurant in conjunction with a Conditional Use Permit 
 (File No. PCUP18-028) to establish: 1) a 124-room full-service hotel; 2) the sale of alcoholic 
 beverages, including beer, wine and distilled spirits, for on-premises consumption by hotel guests 
 and their visitors (Type 70 ABC License – On-Sale General Restrictive Service); and 3) the sale of 
 alcoholic beverages, including beer, wine and distilled spirits, for on-premises consumption in 
 conjunction with a restaurant (Type 47 ABC License – On-Sale General for Bona Fide Eating 
 Place), on 2.25 acres of land located at the northwest corner of Turner Avenue and Guasti Road, at 
 535 North Turner Avenue, within Planning Area 1 of the Guasti Plaza Specific Plan. The 
 environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with the Guasti 
 Plaza Specific Plan (File No. 4413-SP) EIR (SCH # 1991122009) certified by the City Council on 
 August 20, 1996. This application is consistent with the previously adopted EIR and introduces no 
 new significant environmental impacts. All previously adopted mitigation measures shall be a 
 condition of project approval and are incorporated herein by reference. The proposed project is l
 ocated within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and 
 found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use 
 Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 0210-192-24) submitted by Cambria Ontario, LLC. City 
 Council action is required. 

 
Representative Roger Barbosa of Milestone Management was present and stated he agreed to the 
conditions and had no questions. Mr. Mercier asked the board members if they had any questions 
at which time Mr. Sorel asked Mr. Mercier if they would be approving PCUP18-028 with PDEV18-
027. Mr. Mercier stated they would.  Mr. Sorel asked Mr. Barbosa if he reviewed the conditions 
regarding the sale of alcohol. Mr. Barbosa stated he did and discussed these conditions with staff.  
There were no further questions or concerns.  Mr. Mercier called for a motion on the item.  
 
Motion recommending approval to the Planning Commission of File Nos. PCUP18-028 & 
PDEV18-027, subject to conditions, was made by Mr. De Sousa; seconded by Mr. Shear; and 
approved unanimously by those present (7-0). 
 

C.   ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. 
 PDEV18-037: A Development Plan to construct 176 single-family homes (72 lane-loaded units 
 and 104 conventional units), located on the north side of Ontario Ranch Road, west of Turner 
 Avenue, within Planning Area 8A (Low Density Residential) of The Avenue Specific Plan. The 
 environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with The Avenue 
 Specific Plan (File No. PSP05-003) EIR (SCH # 2005071109) certified by the City Council on 
 February 16, 2007. This application is consistent with the previously adopted EIR and introduces 
 no new significant environmental impacts. All previously adopted mitigation measures shall be a 
 condition of project approval and are incorporated herein by reference. The proposed project is 
 located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and 
 found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use 
 Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). The project site is also located within the Airport Influence area of 
 Chino Airport and is consistent with policies and criteria set forth within the 2011 California  Airport  
 Land Use Planning Handbook published by the California Department of Transportation, 
 Division of Aeronautics. (APNs: 0218-201-26 and 0218-201-27) submitted by Lennar Homes of 
 CA, INC.  Planning Commission action is required.  

Item A - 2 of 4



Development Advisory Board 
Minutes –May 20, 2019 
Page 3 
 
 

Representative Amy Williams of Lennar Homes of CA, Inc. was present and agreed to the 
conditions of approval.  There were no questions or concerns.  Mr. Mercier called for a motion on 
the item.  
 
Motion recommending approval to the Planning Commission of File No. PDEV18-037, subject to 
conditions, was made by Mr. De Sousa; seconded by Mr. Shear; and approved unanimously by 
those present (7-0). 
 

D.   ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO.    
 PDEV19-010: A Development Plan to construct 204 multiple-family residential units (6-Plex 
 Rowtown) on 9.16 acres of land located at the northeast corner of Ontario Ranch Road and Haven 
 Avenue, within the Mixed Use District Planning Area 6A of the Rich Haven Specific Plan. The 
 environmental impacts of this project were previously analyzed in an addendum to The Rich Haven 
 Specific Plan File (No. PSP05-004) EIR (SCH# 2006051081) that was certified by the City Council 
 on December 4, 2007 and an Addendum to The Ontario Plan (File No. PGPA06-001) EIR (SCH# 
 2008101140) certified by the City Council on January 27, 2010. This application is consistent with 
 the previously adopted EIR and introduces no new significant environmental impacts. All 
 previously adopted mitigation measures shall be a condition of project approval and are 
 incorporated herein  by reference. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence 
 Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the  policies 
 and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP);  (APNs: 
 218-211-02 and 218-211-05) submitted by Brookfield Residential.  Planning Commission 
 action is required.  
 

Mr. Mercier stated Items D, E, and F could be presented at one time since they had the same 
applicant and the projects were related. Representatives Susan McDowell and Derek Spalding of 
Brookfield Residential were present and stated they agreed to the conditions of approval but asked 
for clarification on item D regarding the preliminary Fire Department conditions as well as the 
Occupancy condition. Mr. Ehrman responded and said it would be clarified and stated as such in 
the conditions.  Mr. Spalding and Ms. McDowell were in agreement and had no other concerns.  
Mr. Mercier called for a motion for all three items.  

 
Motion recommending approval to the Planning Commission of File No. PDEV19-010, subject to 
conditions, was made by Mr. Shear; seconded by Mr. De Sousa; and approved unanimously by 
those present (7-0). 
 

E.   ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. 
 PDEV19-011: A Development Plan to construct 61 single-family residential units (6-Pack Cluster) 
 on 4.7 acres of land located at the northeast corner of Ontario Ranch Road and Haven Avenue, 
 within the Mixed Use District Planning Area 6A of the Rich Haven Specific Plan. The 
 environmental impacts of this project were previously analyzed in an addendum to The Rich Haven 
 Specific Plan File (No. PSP05-004) EIR (SCH# 2006051081) that was certified by the City Council 
 on December 4, 2007 and an Addendum to The Ontario Plan (File No. PGPA06-001) EIR (SCH# 
 2008101140) certified by City Council on January 27, 2010. This application is consistent with the 
 previously adopted EIR and introduces no new significant environmental impacts. All previously 
 adopted mitigation measures shall be a condition of project approval and are incorporated herein by      
 reference. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
 International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the 
 Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APNs: 218-211-02 and 

Item A - 3 of 4



Item A - 4 of 4



Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
June 17, 2019 

DECISION NO.: [insert #] 

FILE NO.: PVAR19-003 

DESCRIPTION: A Variance to deviate from the minimum front building setback, from 30 feet to 25 
feet, and from the interior side setback, from 10 feet to 5 feet, in conjunction with the construction of an 
attached duplex on 0.141 acre of land located at 519 North Grove Avenue, within the MDR-18 (Medium 
Density Residential – 11.1 to 18.0 DU/Acre) zoning district. (APN: 1048-451-09) submitted by GMK 
Construction.  

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

GMK CONSTRUCTION, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application requesting 
Variance approval, File No. PVAR19-003, as described in the subject of this Decision (herein after referred 
to as "Application" or "Project"). 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 0.141 acre of land located at 519 North
Grove Avenue, and is depicted in Exhibit A: Aerial Photograph, attached. Existing land uses, General Plan 
and zoning designations, and specific plan land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 

Existing Land Use General Plan Designation Zoning Designation 

Site: Vacant MDR (Medium Density 
Residential) 

MDR-18 (Medium Density 
Residential – 11.1 to 18.0 

DU/Acre) 

North: Multifamily Residential MDR (Medium Density 
Residential) 

MDR-18 (Medium Density 
Residential – 11.1 to 18.0 

DU/Acre) 

South: Multifamily Residential MDR (Medium Density 
Residential) 

MDR-18 (Medium Density 
Residential – 11.1 to 18.0 

DU/Acre) 

East: Grove Avenue and Single 
Family Residential 

LDR (Low Density 
Residential) 

LDR-5 (Low Density 
Residential – 2.1 to 5.0 

DU/Acre) 

West: Multifamily Residential MDR (Medium Density 
Residential) 

MDR-18 (Medium Density 
Residential – 11.1 to 18.0 

DU/Acre) 

(2) Project Description:

(a) Background — The project site was initially developed in 1949 with a 399-square
foot single-family home; however, the building was demolished due to unrepairable fire damage and is 
presently vacant (see Exhibit A – Project Location Map, attached). The project site and surrounding parcels 
were previously zoned R2 (Medium Density Residential) which allowed for a 20-foot front yard setback and 
5-foot side yard setback. In 2015 and 2016, the City Council approved a comprehensive updates to the

Item B - 1 of 15



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PVAR19-003 
June 17, 2019 

Page 2 

City’s Official Zoning Map and Development Code to bring the Zoning Map and Development Code into 
consistency with the Policy Plan Component of The Ontario Plan. The Comprehensive Zoning Update 
included the project site and surrounding properties, and reclassified zones throughout the City. 
Additionally, the R2 zone was eliminated and replaced with MDR-18 zone and development standards were 
revised. In the MDR-18 zone buildings are now required to have a 30-foot front yard setback and a 10-foot 
side yard setback (as opposed to the 20-foot front yard and 5-foot side yard setbacks previously allowed 
on the property by the R2 zone). The intent of the MDR-18 zoning district is to provide a variety of attached 
and detached housing types with densities in the range of 11.1 to 18 units per acre. The project site is the 
only remaining parcel in the immediate area that has not been developed. The immediate area has been 
developed with a mix of multiple-family and single-family dwellings. 

The previous property owner, LZCC Holdings Inc. attempted to develop the site with either multiple-family 
or single-family residential development, but was unsuccessful due to the size limitations of the property, 
density requirements, and the setback requirements of the current Development Code. 

In September 2017, the Zoning Administrator (ZA) made a Development Code Interpretation to clarify the 
implementation of certain provisions of Section 6.01.010 (Residential Zoning Districts), as it governs the 
applicability of the development standards contained in Tables 6.01-1 through 6.01-3, and how each table 
applies to the construction of single-family and/or multiple-family dwellings. As a result, the Zoning 
Administrator found that the development of “two single-family dwellings in a front-to-rear or side-by-side 
configuration on a single lot” within the MDR-18 zoning district, met the intent of the goals, objectives and 
policies of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan. This interpretation allowed the 
previous owner to receive approval of their building permit for two single-family dwellings on the site.  

The property was subsequently sold to Ontario OPZ Fund LP, and building permits were issued for the two 
units on March 13, 2019. Prior to commencing construction, a survey of the project site was conducted and 
revealed that the approved Building Department construction site plan did not accurately show the property 
dimensions. The eastern portion of the property was reduced by 30 feet due to street widening on Grove 
Avenue, from a 2-lane to a 4-lane street, that was not reflected on the site plan. As a result, the applicant 
is proposing a new site plan to reflect the accurate property dimensions and is requesting a variance for 
setback reductions to accommodate the two units. The Applicant submitted their Variance application (File 
No. PVAR19-003) on April 16, 2019, to reduce the front building setback, from 30 feet to 25 feet, and reduce 
the interior side setback, from 10 feet to 5 feet. 

(b) Site Design/Building Layout — The project site is a rectangular–shaped property,
with an angled end along the eastern property line adjacent to Grove Avenue. The lot width is 52 feet and 
lot depth along the northern property line is 113.5 feet and 123.63 feet along the southern property line, 
and is depicted in Exhibit B: Site Plan, attached. The proposed building is L-shaped and situated along the 
northern and western portion of the site. The proposed building setbacks include a varying 25 to 30-foot 
front yard setback, 5-foot side yard setbacks, and a 10-foot rear yard setback. The proposed dwelling units 
are attached, with the front single-story unit totaling 1,640 square feet and the rear two-story unit totaling 
2,133 square feet (see Exhibit C – Floor Plan, attached). The front unit provides 3-bedrooms, 2-bathrooms, 
a laundry room and a two-car garage. The rear unit provides 3-bedrooms, 2 bathrooms, a loft, one powder 
room, a laundry room, and a two-car garage. The main entrances for both units will face east, towards 
Grove Avenue. The maximum lot coverage allowed within the MDR-18 zoning district is 60 percent and 
proposed lot coverage 36.5 percent, consistent with Development Code requirements. 

(c) Site Access/Parking — The Development Code requires an enclosed two-car
garage for each unit, which has been provided. Access to the site will be from Grove Avenue via a 20-foot-
wide driveway approach. The rear unit will be accessed from a 10-foot 7-inch drive aisle located along the 
southern property line that connects to the driveway approach.  

(d) Variance — The Development Code requires the MDR-18 (Medium Density
Residential) zoning district to provide a minimum 30-foot front yard building setback from Arterial Streets 

Item B - 2 of 15



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PVAR19-003 
June 17, 2019 

Page 3 

(Grove Avenue) and a 10-foot side yard setback. The applicant has attempted to apply the Development 
Code requirements to the project site but when applied to the narrow lot and irregular shaped parcel, the 
resulting building envelope is severely limited for siting the required two units, required parking, and livable 
floor plans. The Applicant is requesting a variance to reduce the front yard building setback, from 30 feet 
to 25 feet, and reduce the interior side yard setback, from 10 feet to 5 feet, to allow for the development of 
the site. 

The Development Code requires Infill Housing Projects to be complementary with the character of the 
surrounding neighborhood in which they are proposed in terms of height, setbacks, general architectural 
style, and use of exterior finish materials. The existing neighborhood consists of housing developed in the 
1950s and 1960s that has an average front yard setback of 20 feet, which was consistent with the previous 
R2 zoning district and Development Code standards. The project’s proposed front and side yard setbacks 
will be consistent with the existing surrounding development and the strict and literal interpretation of the 
Development Code would deprive the applicant of privileges enjoyed by the surrounding property owners. 
Staff believes, that the Variance request is consistent with TOP Goal LU3, which promotes flexibility in order 
to respond to special conditions and circumstances in order to achieve the Vision. For these reasons, staff 
supports granting the variance request. 

Part II—RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption (listed in CEQA 
Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the application of that categorical exemption 
is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Department on the subject Application; and 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and 

WHEREAS, on June 17, 2019, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 

Item B - 3 of 15



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PVAR19-003 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 4 

 
WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 

 
Part III—THE DECISION 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 

Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the administrative record for 
the Project. Based upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all written 
and oral evidence presented to the DAB, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15305 (Class 5, Minor Alterations in Land Use Limitations) of the 
CEQA Guidelines, which includes minor lot line adjustments, side yard, and setback variances not resulting 
in the creation of any new parcel. 
 

(2) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set 
forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

(3) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment of the DAB. 
 

SECTION 2: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one of 
the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of 
the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 
 

SECTION 3: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 
Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB 
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

Item B - 4 of 15



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PVAR19-003 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 5 

(1) The strict or literal interpretation and enforcement of the specified regulation would 
result in practical difficulty or unnecessary physical hardship inconsistent with the objectives of 
the development regulations contained in this Development Code. The neighborhood surrounding the 
project site is fully developed with a mix of multiple-family and single-family dwellings. The northern (side) 
property line is approximately 113 feet in length, while the southern (side) property line is 123 feet in length, 
creating an irregular shaped parcel along the eastern end of the site adjacent to Grove Avenue. Grove 
Avenue begins to bend and curve at G Street, north of the project site, for a distance of approximately 650 
feet to the south, creating a series of irregular-shaped parcels along this stretch of Grove Avenue, which 
includes the project site. Due to the existing size and shape of the project site and its relationship to the 
adjacent Arterial Street (Grove Avenue), options for development of the project site consistent with current 
Development Code standards are limited. However, approval of the requested Variance would allow the 
development project to meet the minimum density requirements and develop the substandard and irregular-
shaped lot. Moreover, with the requested variance, the project would still meet the minimum landscape 
requirements of the Development Code and would allow for adequate access for both units. In addition, 
TOP Policy Plan Goal LU3 allows for flexible response to conditions and circumstances in order to achieve 
the Vision. Strict interpretation and enforcement of the Development Plan’s front yard and side yard setback 
would result in practical difficulty, inconsistent with the objectives of the development regulations contained 
in the Development Code and TOP; and 
 

(2) There are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions applicable to 
the property involved, or to the intended use of the property, that do not apply generally to other 
properties in the vicinity and in the same zoning district. The existing parcel is the last vacant parcel 
within the vicinity. The neighborhood surrounding the project site is fully developed with a mix of multiple-
family and single-family dwellings. The majority of the properties in the neighborhood of the project site, 
along Grove Avenue, currently enjoy reduced building setbacks in relation to today’s Development Code 
standards (an average of 20 feet rather than the required 30 feet for arterial streets). In addition, existing 
multiple-family development directly adjacent to the project site currently enjoys an approximate five-foot 
interior side yard building setback; and 
 

(3) The strict or literal interpretation and enforcement of the specified regulation would 
deprive the applicant of privileges enjoyed by the owners of other properties in the same zoning 
district. The requested relief from the minimum front and interior side yard building setbacks will allow for 
greater design flexibility and will serve to equalize development rights between the applicant and owners 
of property in the same zoning district, located within the area of the project site. The unique nature of the 
substandard parcel, in that it is the last remaining vacant parcel within the neighborhood, creates additional 
challenges to conforming to today’s Development Code and to serve distinctive needs around the site. 
Furthermore, the majority of the properties in the neighborhood of the project site, along Grove Avenue, 
currently enjoy reduced building setbacks in relation to today’s Development Code standards (an average 
of 20 feet rather than the required 30 feet for arterial streets). In addition, existing multiple-family 
development directly adjacent to the project site currently enjoys an approximate five-foot interior building 
setback; and 
 

(4) The granting of the Variance will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or 
welfare, or be materially injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity. A thorough review 
and analysis of the proposed Variance and its potential to adversely impact properties surrounding the 
subject site was completed by staff. As a result of this review, certain design considerations will be 
incorporated into the project as conditions of approval, to mitigate identified impacts to an acceptable level, 
including the use of upgraded materials, the inclusion of certain architectural design elements on building 
exteriors, intensified landscape elements, and decorative paving; and 
 

(5) The proposed Variance is consistent with the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of 
the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, 
and the purposes of any applicable specific plan or planned unit development, and the purposes of 
this Development Code. The proposed Project is located with the MDR (Medium Density Residential) land 

Item B - 5 of 15



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PVAR19-003 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 6 

use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the MDR-18 (Medium Density Residential – 11.1 to 18.0 
DU/Acre) zoning district. The development standards and conditions under which the proposed Project will 
be constructed and maintained, is consistent with the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy 
Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan. 
 

SECTION 5: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission APPROVE 
the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included as 
Attachment A of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 7: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of June 2019. 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 

Item B - 6 of 15



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PVAR19-003 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 7 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 
 

  

Project Site 

Item B - 7 of 15



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PVAR19-003 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 8 

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN 

   

Item B - 8 of 15



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PVAR19-003 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 9 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLAN 

 

Item B - 9 of 15



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PVAR19-003 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 10 

Exhibit D—ELEVATIONS (EAST AND WEST) 
 

 
 

  

Item B - 10 of 15



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PVAR19-003 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 11 

Exhibit D—ELEVATIONS (NORTH AND SOUTH) 

 
 

  

Item B - 11 of 15



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PVAR19-003 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 12 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 

Item B - 12 of 15



 
 
Meeting Date: June 17, 2019 
 
File No: PVAR19-003 
 
Project Description: A Variance to deviate from the minimum front building setback, from 30 feet to 25 
feet, and from the interior side setback, from 10 feet to 5 feet, in conjunction with the construction of an 
attached duplex on 0.141 acres of land located at 519 North Grove Avenue, within the MDR-18 (Medium 
Density Residential – 11.1 to 18.0 DU/Acre) zoning district. (APN: 1048-451-09) submitted by GMK 
Construction. 
 
Prepared By: Jeanie Irene Aguilo, Associate Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2418 (direct) 
Email: jaguilo@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development 
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of 
approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits. 
 

(a) Variance approval shall become null and void one year following the effective date 
of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced, and diligently 
pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director, except that a 
Variance approved in conjunction with a Development Plan shall have the same time limits as said 
Development Plan. This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or any 
other departmental conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific 
conditions or improvements. 
 
 

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 
 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but 
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading, 
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans 
on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file 
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 

Planning Department 
Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item B - 13 of 15



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PVAR19-003 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included 
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 
 

2.3 Landscaping.  
 

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and irrigation 
systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping). 
 

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; Landscape 
Planning Division. 
 

(c) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation Construction 
Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping) have been 
approved by the Landscape Planning Division. 
 

(d) Changes to approved Landscape and Irrigation Construction Documentation 
Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation system design, shall be 
resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning Division, prior to the commencement 
of the changes. 
 

2.4 Walls and Fences. All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements of 
Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions). 
 

2.5 Parking, Circulation and Access. 
 

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and lighting 
requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading). 
 

(b) The required number of off-street parking spaces and/or loading spaces shall be 
provided at the time of site and/or building occupancy. All parking and loading spaces shall be maintained 
in good condition for the duration of the building or use. 

 
(c) Parking spaces specifically designated and conveniently located for use by the 

physically disabled shall be provided pursuant to current accessibility regulations contained in State law 
(CCR Title 24, Part 2, Chapters 2B71, and CVC Section 22507.8). 
 

2.6 Site Lighting. 
 

(a) All off-street parking facilities shall be provided with nighttime security lighting 
pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 4-11.08 (Special Residential Building Provisions) and Section 
4-11.09 (Special Commercial/Industrial Building Provisions), designed to confine emitted light to the parking 
areas. Parking facilities shall be lighted from sunset until sunrise, daily, and shall be operated by a photocell 
switch. 
 

(b) Unless intended as part of a master lighting program, no operation, activity, or 
lighting fixture shall create illumination on any adjacent property. 
 

2.7 Environmental Review.  
 

(a) The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15303 (Class 3, New Construction or Conversion 
of Small Structures) of the CEQA Guidelines, which consists of which consists of the construction and 
location of limited numbers of new, small facilities or structures; installation of small new equipment and 

Item B - 14 of 15



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PVAR19-003 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
facilities in small structures; and the conversion of existing small structures from one use to another where 
only minor modifications are made in the exterior of the structure. 
 

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction 
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner 
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is 
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or 
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures 
implemented. 
 

2.8 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of 
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.9 Additional Fees. 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination 
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made 
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time 
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building 
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established 
by resolution of the City Council. 
 

2.10 Additional Requirements. 
 

(a) Building Permit plans shall reflect the conceptual site plan and floor plan provided 
to the Planning Commission. Any deviations from the conceptual design shall require Planning Director 
approval.  

Item B - 15 of 15



Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
June 17, 2019 

DECISION NO.: [insert #] 

FILE NO.: PMTT18-001 

DESCRIPTION: A Tentative Parcel Map (TPM 19936) to subdivide 51.9 acres of land into two 
parcels, located at 5100 East Jurupa Avenue and 5171 East Francis Street, within the (IH) Heavy Industrial 
and (UC) Utilities Corridor zoning districts (APN: 238-132-24); submitted by New Indy Containerboard. 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

NEW INDY CONTAINERBOARD, (hereinafter referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application 
requesting Tentative Parcel Map approval, File No. PMTT18-001, as described in the subject of this 
Decision (hereinafter referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 51.9 acres of land located at 5100 East
Jurupa Avenue and 5171 East Francis Street, and is depicted in Exhibit A: Aerial Photograph, attached. 
Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning designations, and specific plan land uses on and surrounding 
the project site are as follows: 

Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site: Paper Mill – Container 
Board Manufacturer 

IND - Industrial \OS-
NR - Open Space-Non 

Recreation 

IH – Heavy 
Industrial/UC – Utility 

Corridor 
N/A 

North: Industrial Warehouse IND - Industrial 
Pacific Gate/East Gate 
Specific Plan – Light 

Industrial 

Pacific Gate/East Gate 
Specific Plan – Light 

Industrial 
South: Industrial Warehouse IND - Industrial IH – Heavy Industrial N/A 

East: 
Southern California 
Utility Easement – 

Transmission Towers 

OS-NR - Open Space -
Non Recreation 

OS-R Open Space 
Recreation N/A 

West: Flood Control Channel 
and Basin 

OS-NR - Open Space -
Non Recreation 

OS-R Open Space 
Recreation N/A 

(2) Project Background: The project site is part of a 51.05-acre through lot having two street
frontages: Jurupa Street and Francis Street. The site has a varying 60- to 65-foot wide San Bernardino 
County flood control channel easement (Lower Etiwanda Creek Channel) that runs along the project site’s 
easterly property line, which turns westward towards a San Bernardino County flood control basin located 
along through the southerly portion of the project site. The flood control channel physically divides the parcel 
and is located approximately 1,900 feet south of Jurupa Street. The site also has an existing 30-foot wide 
rail spur easement that traverses the parcel from the east, which enters the property over a bridge that 
spans approximately 50 to 60 feet across the flood control channel. Additionally, there are multiple 
easements located parallel to the project site’s westerly property line for public utilities, flood control, SCE, 
Southern California Gas, and public roadway purposes, which vary in width from 4 feet to 90 feet. The 

Item C - 1 of 19



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-001 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 2 

northern portion of the site was developed with a paper mill in 1985, which produces corrugated paper, 
unbleached kraftliner, and recycled paper products. 
 
There have been subsequent building additions to the project site to support the paper mill facility 
operations, including cooling towers and steam plant. Most recently, a new heat and power plant facility 
was approved by the Development Advisory Board on June 18, 2018, which is presently under construction. 
 
In 2017, the southern portion of the project site, known as the Encorr Sheet Plant, was constructed as part 
of a 147,542 square foot industrial building. Paper/cardboard containers are manufactured within the 
building, utilizing paper products from the paper mill. The two facilities are owned by the same company 
(New-Indy Ontario); however, they operate as two independent business entities. The owner is seeking 
Tentative Parcel Map approval to subdivide the project site, thereby further separating the business entities. 
 

(3) Tentative Parcel Map: The proposed Tentative Parcel Map will subdivide the 51.9-acre 
project site into two parcels. Parcel 1, the northern parcel, is 41.69 acres in size and encompasses 17 
structures totaling 165,763 square feet, which includes two office buildings (totaling 10,367 square feet), a 
paper mill (110,715 square feet), a substation building (2,010 square feet), eight storage sheds (totaling 
5,956 square feet), a process building (2,370 square feet), an equipment room (7,800 square feet), a 
maintenance building (2,700 square feet), two cooling towers (totaling 1,822 square feet), a heat and power 
plant currently under construction (22,023 square feet), and a parking lot containing 173 spaces. Parcel 2, 
the southern parcel, is 10.3 acres in size and encompasses the 147,452 square foot cardboard 
manufacturing facility and a parking lot containing 118 spaces. The proposed parcel sizes, as described 
above, exceed the minimum 10,000-sqare foot lot size requirement of the IH (Heavy Industrial) zoning 
district. Additionally, the proposed subdivision will not result in the creation of any nonconforming building 
setbacks, FARs, landscape coverages and setbacks, or off-street parking facilities. 
 

(4) Covenants, Conditions & Restrictions: The applicant will be required to establish 
Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&R’s) for the project site, which will establish the property rights 
and responsibilities for each property owner. The CC&R’s will be recorded with the final map and address 
common maintenance, reciprocal access between parcels, and any common maintenance of landscaped 
areas, irrigation systems, parking facilities, and utility/drainage/flood control/rail easements. 
 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption (listed in CEQA 
Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the application of that categorical exemption 
is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 

Item C - 2 of 19



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-001 
June 17, 2019 

Page 3 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and

WHEREAS, on June 17, 2019, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 

Part III—THE DECISION 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the administrative record for 
the Project. Based upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all written 
and oral evidence presented to the DAB, the DAB finds as follows: 

(1) The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15315 (Class 15 - Minor Land Divisions) of the CEQA Guidelines. 
Class 15 allows for the division of property in urbanized areas for industrial use into four or fewer parcels 
when the division is in conformance with the General Plan and zoning, no variances or exceptions are 
required, all services and access to the proposed parcels to local standards are available, the parcel was 
not involved in a division of a larger parcel within the previous two years, and the parcel does not have an 
average slope greater than 20 percent. 

(2) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set
forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 

(3) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment of the DAB.

SECTION 2: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending  body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one of 
the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of 
the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 

SECTION 3: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 
Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 

Item C - 3 of 19



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-001 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 4 

approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB 
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed Tentative Parcel Map is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and 
exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The 
Ontario Plan, and applicable area and specific plans, and planned unit developments. The proposed 
Tentative Parcel Map is located within the IND (Industrial) and OS-NR (Open Space-Non Recreation) land 
use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the IH (Heavy Industrial) and UC (Utility Corridor) zoning 
district. The proposed subdivision is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, 
Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, as the project will 
contribute to the establishment of “[a] dynamic, progressive city containing distinct neighborhoods and 
commercial districts that foster a positive sense of identity and belonging among residents, visitors, and 
businesses” (Goal CD1). Furthermore, the project will promote the City’s policy to “take actions that are 
consistent with the City being a leading urban center in Southern California while recognizing the diverse 
character of our existing viable neighborhoods” (Policy CD1-1 City Identity). 
 

(2) The design or improvement of the proposed Tentative Parcel Map is consistent with 
the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council 
Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, and applicable specific plans and planned unit 
developments. The proposed Tentative Parcel Map is located within the IND (Industrial) and OS-NR (Open 
Space-Non Recreation) land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the IH (Heavy Industrial) 
and UC (Utility Corridor) zoning district. The proposed design or improvement of the subdivision is 
consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City 
Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, as the project will provide “[a] high level of design quality 
resulting in public spaces, streetscapes, and developments that are attractive, safe, functional and distinct 
(Goal CD2). Furthermore, the project will promote the City’s policy to “collaborate with the development 
community to design and build neighborhoods, streetscapes, sites, outdoor spaces, landscaping and 
buildings to reduce energy demand through solar orientation, maximum use of natural daylight, passive 
solar and natural ventilation, building form, mechanical and structural systems, building materials and 
construction techniques” (Policy CD2-7 Sustainability). 
 

(3) The site is physically suitable for the type of development proposed. The project site 
meets the minimum lot area and dimensions of the IH (Heavy Industrial) and UC (Utility Corridor) zoning 
district zoning district, and is physically suitable for the type of Industrial development that exists in terms 
of zoning, land use and development activity, and existing site conditions. 
 

(4) The site is physically suitable for the density/intensity of development proposed. 
The project site is for industrial development at a floor area ratio of 0.55. The project site meets the minimum 
lot area and dimensions of the IH (Heavy Industrial) and UC (Utility Corridor) zoning districts, and is 
physically suitable for the existing intensity of development. 

Item C - 4 of 19



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-001 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 5 

 
(5) The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements thereon, are not likely 

to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or 
their habitat. The project site is not located in an area that has been identified as containing species 
identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies or 
regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, nor 
does the site contain any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community, and no wetland habitat is 
present on site; therefore, the design of the subdivision, or improvements proposed thereon, are not likely 
to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or their 
habitat. 
 

(6) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, are not likely to 
cause serious public health problems. The project site is presently developed and the proposed 
subdivision, and the existing conditions on the project site, are not likely to cause serious public health 
problems, as the project is not anticipated to involve the transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials 
during either construction or project implementation, include the use of hazardous materials or volatile fuels, 
nor are there any known stationary commercial or industrial land uses within close proximity to the subject 
site that use/store hazardous materials to the extent that they would pose a significant hazard to visitors or 
occupants to the project site. 
 

(7) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, will not conflict 
with easements acquired by the public at large for access through, or use of property within, the 
proposed subdivision. The proposed subdivision has provided for all necessary public easements and 
dedications for access through, or use of property within, the proposed subdivision. Furthermore, all such 
public easements and dedications have been designed pursuant to: (a) the requirements of the Policy Plan 
component of The Ontario Plan and applicable area plans; (b) applicable specific plans or planned unit 
developments; (c) applicable provisions of the City of Ontario Development Code; (d) applicable master 
plans and design guidelines of the City; and (e) applicable Standard Drawings of the City. 
 

SECTION 5: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission 
APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included 
as Attachment A of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 7: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of June 2019. 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 

Item C - 5 of 19



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-001 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 6 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 
 

 
  

Item C - 6 of 19



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-001 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 7 

Exhibit B—TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP 
 

  

Item C - 7 of 19



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-001 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 

Item C - 8 of 19



 
 
Meeting Date: June 17, 2019 
 
File No: PMTT18-001 
 
Related Files: N/A 
 
Project Description: A Tentative Parcel Map (TPM 19936) to subdivide 51.9 acres of land into two 
parcels, located at 5100 East Jurupa Avenue and 5171 East Francis Street, within the (IH) Heavy Industrial 
and (UC) Utilities Corridor zoning districts (APN: 238-132-24); submitted by New Indy Containerboard. 
 
Prepared By: Lorena Mejia, Senior Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2276 (direct) 
Email: lmejia@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 
 

1.1 Time Limits. 
 

(a) Tentative Parcel Map approval shall become null and void 2 years following the 
effective date of application approval, unless the final parcel/tract map has been recorded, or a time 
extension has been approved by the Planning Commission pursuant to Development Code Section 
2.02.025 (Time Limits and Extensions). This Permit does not supersede any individual time limits specified 
herein for performance of specific conditions or improvements. 
 

1.2 Subdivision Map. 
 

(a) The Final Parcel Map shall be in conformance with the approved Tentative 
Tract/Parcel Map on file with the City. Variations from the approved Tentative Parcel Map may be reviewed 
and approved by the Planning Department. A substantial variation from the approved Tentative Parcel Map 
may require review and approval by the Planning Commission, as determined by the Planning Director. 
 

(b) Tentative Parcel Map approval shall be subject to all conditions, requirements and 
recommendations from all other departments/agencies provided on the attached reports/memorandums. 
 

(c) Pursuant to California Government Section 66474.9, the subdivider agrees that it 
will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Ontario or its agents, officers and employees from any 
claim, action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set 
aside, void or annul any approval of the City of Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission 
or other authorized board or officer of this subdivision, which action is brought within the time period 
provided for in Government Code Section 66499.37. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the subdivider 
of any such claim, action or proceeding and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 

Planning Department 
Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item C - 9 of 19



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT18-001 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

1.3 Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs)/Mutual Access and Maintenance 
Agreements. 
 

(a) CC&Rs shall be prepared for the Project and shall be recorded with the Final 
Parcel Map. 
 

(b) The CC&Rs shall be in a form and contain provisions satisfactory to the City. The 
articles of incorporation for the property owners association and the CC&Rs shall be reviewed and approved 
by the City. 
 

(c) CC&Rs shall ensure reciprocal access between parcels. 
 

(d) CC&Rs shall ensure reciprocal access between parcels, and common 
maintenance of: 
 

(i) Landscaping and irrigation systems within common areas; 
(ii) Landscaping and irrigation systems within parkways adjacent to the 

project site, including that portion of any public highway right-of-way between the property line or right-of-
way boundary line and the curb line and also the area enclosed within the curb lines of a median divider 
(Ontario Municipal Code Section 7-3.03), pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 5-22-02; 

(iii) Shared access drives; and 
(iv) Utility and drainage easements. 

 
(e) CC&Rs shall include authorization for the City’s local law enforcement officers to 

enforce City and State traffic and penal codes within the project area. 
 

(f) The CC&Rs shall grant the City of Ontario the right of enforcement of the CC&R 
provisions. 
 

(g) A specific methodology/procedure shall be established within the CC&Rs for 
enforcement of its provisions by the City of Ontario, if adequate maintenance of the development does not 
occur, such as, but not limited to, provisions that would grant the City the right of access to correct 
maintenance issues and assess the property owners association for all costs incurred. 
 

1.4 Environmental Review.  
 

(a) The proposed project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act of 1970 (CEQA), as amended, and the Guidelines promulgated 
thereunder, pursuant to Section 15315 (Class 15 - Minor Land Divisions) of the CEQA Guidelines. Class 
15 allows for the division of property in urbanized areas for industrial use into four or fewer parcels when 
the division is in conformance with the General Plan and zoning, no variances or exceptions are required, 
all services and access to the proposed parcels to local standards are available, the parcel was not involved 
in a division of a larger parcel within the previous two years, and the parcel does not have an average slope 
greater than 20 percent.  
 

1.5 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of 
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 
 
 

Item C - 10 of 19



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT18-001 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 

1.6 Additional Fees. 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination 
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made 
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time 
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 
 

Item C - 11 of 19



AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CD No.:

PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement 
Dedication

Real Estate Transaction

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

Airspace Avigation 
Easement Area

Allowable 
Height:

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones: 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 1

Zone 6

Allowable Height:

PMTT18-001

5171 East Francis Street

0238-134-24

Paper/cardboard Manufacturer

Subdivide 51.05 acres into 2 parcels

51.05 ac

N/A

ONT

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT.

Lorena Mejia

909-395-2276

Lorena Mejia

2/20/18

2018-002

n/a

Existing Structures

200 FT +

Item C - 12 of 19



Item C - 13 of 19



Item C - 14 of 19



 

 TO: PLANNING DEPARTMENT, Lorena Mejia 

 FROM: BUILDING DEPARTMENT, Kevin Shear 

 DATE: March 26, 2019 

 SUBJECT: PMTT18-001 

      

 

 1. The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time. 

   No comments.   

 

 

 

KS:lm 

 

                  CITY OF ONTARIO 
                                             MEMORANDUM 

Item C - 15 of 19



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
 
TO:  Lorena Mejia, Senior Planner 
  Planning Department 
 
FROM:  Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 
  Fire Department 
 
DATE:  April 7, 2019 
 
SUBJECT: PMTT18-001 - A Parcel Map (PM 19936) to subdivide 52 acres of land into 

2 parcels, located at 5171 East Francis Street, within the IH (Heavy 
Industrial) zoning district (APN: 0238-132-24). Related File: PDEV15-025. 

 
 

   The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.  

   Standard Conditions of Approval apply.  Refer to PDEV15-025. 

 
 

Item C - 16 of 19



X
X

Broadband Operations    Anna Vaca    Sr. Systems Analyst            02/16/2018

Item C - 17 of 19



Item C - 18 of 19



CITY OF ONTARIO 
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION 

303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 

CONDITIONS OF APROVAL 
Sign Off 

 
2/8/18 

Carolyn Bell, Sr. Landscape Planner Date 

Reviewer’s Name:  
Carolyn Bell, Sr. Landscape Planner 

Phone: 
(909) 395-2237 

 
D.A.B. File No.:                                           
 PMTT18-001 

Case Planner: 
Lorena Mejia 

Project Name and Location:  
Tenative Parcel Map 
5171 E Francis St 
Applicant/Representative: 
New Indy Ontario LLC Thienes Engineering 
14349 Firestone Blvd 
La Mirada, CA 90638 
 
  

 
A Tentative Parcel Map (dated 1/9/18) meets the Standard Conditions for New Development 
and has been approved with the consideration that the following conditions below be met 
upon submittal of the landscape construction documents. 

 

 

A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated ) has not been approved.                               
Corrections noted below are required prior to Preliminary Landscape Plan approval. 

CORRECTIONS REQUIRED   
 

1. Landscape construction plans shall meet the requirements of the Landscape Development 
Guidelines. See http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards 

2. Landscape construction plans with building permit number for plan check may be emailed to: 
landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 

 

Item C - 19 of 19

http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards
mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


 

 Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
June 17, 2019 

 
DECISION NO.: [insert #] 
 
FILE NO.: PMTT19-001 
 
DESCRIPTION: A Tentative Parcel Map (File No. PMTT19-001/TM 19993) to subdivide 10.68 
acres of land into two parcels, located at the southwest corner of Via Turin and Fourth Street, at 4170 East 
Fourth Street, within the Retail land use district of the Piemonte Overlay District of the Ontario Center 
Specific Plan. (APN: 0210-204-27); submitted by Ontario Covenant Group, LLC. 
 
 
 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 
 

Ontario Covenant Group, LLC, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application 
requesting Tentative Parcel Map approval, File No. PMTT19-001, as described in the subject of this 
Decision (herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 
 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 10.68 acres of land generally located on 
the south side of Fourth Street, approximately 600 feet west of Milliken Avenue, at 4170 East Fourth Street, 
within the Piemonte Overlay District of the Ontario Center Specific Plan, and is depicted in Exhibit A: Aerial 
Photograph, attached. The proposed Tentative Parcel Map comprises the easterly one-half of a fully 
developed multitenant shopping center, which is anchored by a Target retail store located on the project 
site. Three retail pad buildings are situated on the northern boundary of the shopping center, along Fourth 
Street. The balance of the shopping center on the adjacent existing parcel to the west includes major 
tenants such as Big Al’s (Bowling Center and Sports Bar), DSW Shoes, and PetSmart (PM 19163). The 
property north of the project site, across Fourth Street, is developed with an apartment complex and is 
located within the City of Rancho Cucamonga. The property to the east is anchored by a Kohl’s retail store 
and Wells Fargo Bank as a separate pad site. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning designations, 
and specific plan land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 
 

 Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site Parking Lot/Vacant MU (Mixed Use) Ontario Center Specific 
Plan 

Retail land use district 
of the Piemonte 
Overlay District 

North Residential (Ironwood 
Apartments) 

City of Rancho 
Cucamonga Mixed 

Use 

City of Rancho 
Cucamonga Empire 
Lakes Specific Plan 

Planning Area 6 

South Target MU (Mixed Use) Ontario Center Specific 
Plan 

Retail land use district 
of the Piemonte 
Overlay District 

East Wells Fargo MU (Mixed Use) Ontario Center Specific 
Plan 

Retail land use district 
of the Piemonte 
Overlay District 

Item D - 1 of 67



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT19-001 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 2 

 Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

West 
Ontario Smiles 
Dentistry and 
Orthodontics 

MU (Mixed Use) Ontario Center Specific 
Plan 

Retail land use district 
of the Piemonte 
Overlay District 

 
(2) Project Description:  

 
(a) Background — The project site is fully improved and was developed in conjunction 

with File No. PDEV05-076, a Development Plan to construct a 254,420 square foot multi-tenant commercial 
center, which was approved by Planning Commission in March 2006, and File No. PDEV06-057, a 
Development Plan to construct three pad buildings totaling 20,327 square feet, which was approved by the 
Development Advisory Board in November 2006. The shopping center’s final phase of construction was 
completed around September 2008. 
 

(b) Tentative Parcel Map — The proposed Tentative Parcel Map will result in the 
subdivision of the 10.68-acre project site into two parcels. Parcel 1, the larger parcel containing the existing 
Target retail store, will be 9.67 acres in size. Parcel 2 is 1.01 acre in size, and will facilitate the future 
development of an approximate 5,000-square foot multi-tenant commercial building located at the northern 
project boundary, adjacent to Fourth Street (See Exhibit B: Tentative Parcel Map (TM 19993)). 
 
Although the Ontario Center Specific Plan does not specify minimum subdivision requirements for area or 
dimensions, it does state that lots must be large enough to meet the total space requirements of their 
ultimate users. Lot sizes are dictated by building size, amount of required parking, setbacks and landscape 
areas needed to adequately support a use. The project site was previously designed and constructed 
pursuant to each of the provisions within the Ontario Center Specific Plan. The proposed subdivision and 
new lots are adequately sized to support their existing and proposed users. 
 
Primary access to the project site is taken from Fourth Street. Additional access points located on the south, 
from Concours, as well as on the west, through the Piemonte District, are also available. The existing 
commercial center site exceeds the retail parking standards as required by the Ontario Center Specific 
Plan. Each of the two lots proposed under this subdivision include sufficient number of parking spaces to 
support their respective uses. Additionally, the commercial center’s Covenant, Conditions and Restrictions 
(CC&Rs) include provisions for shared parking between parcels. Revisions to the CC&Rs have been 
included as a Condition of Approval for reciprocal parking and access between all new and existing parcels. 
 
 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with 
File No. PSPA16-003, a Specific Plan Amendment for which a Mitigated Negative Declaration was 
previously adopted by the City Council on May 16, 2017, and this Application introduces no new significant 
environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the 
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to CEQA (Public Resources Code Section 21000 
et seq.), and an initial study has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts; and 

Item D - 2 of 67



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT19-001 
June 17, 2019 

Page 3 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and

WHEREAS, on June 17, 2019, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 

Part III—THE DECISION 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the previous MND and 
supporting documentation. Based upon the facts and information contained in the previous MND and 
supporting documentation, the DAB finds as follows: 

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with File
No. File No. PSPA16-003, a Specific Plan Amendment for which a Mitigated Negative Declaration was 
previously adopted by the City Council on May 16, 2017. 

(2) The previous MND contains a complete and accurate reporting of the environmental
impacts associated with the Project; and 

(3) The previous MND was completed in compliance with CEQA and the Guidelines
promulgated thereunder, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; and 

(4) The previous MND reflects the independent judgment of the Planning Commission; and

Item D - 3 of 67



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT19-001 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 4 

(5) The proposed project will introduce no new significant environmental impacts beyond those 
previously analyzed in the previous MND, and all mitigation measures previously adopted with the MND, 
are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 2: Subsequent or Supplemental Environmental Review Not Required. Based on 
the information presented to the DAB, and the specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the DAB finds 
that the preparation of a subsequent or supplemental MND is not required for the Project, as the Project: 
 

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the MND that will require major revisions to the 
MND due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the 
severity of previously identified significant effects; and 

 
(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances under which the 

MND was prepared, that will require major revisions to the MND due to the involvement of new significant 
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified significant effects; 
and 

 
(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not known and could 

not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the ND was certified/adopted, 
that shows any of the following: 
 

(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the MND; or 
 
(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than 

shown in the MND; or 
 
(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in 

fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the Project, but the City 
declined to adopt such measures; or  

 
(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those analyzed in 

the MND would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but which the City 
declined to adopt. 
 

SECTION 3: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one of 
the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of 
the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 
 

SECTION 4: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 
Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommend body for the Project, the DAB 
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 

Item D - 4 of 67



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT19-001 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 5 

and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 5: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed Parcel Map is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits 
of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario 
Plan, and applicable area and specific plans, and planned unit developments. The proposed Tentative 
Tract/Parcel Map is located within the Mixed-Use land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and 
the Retail land use district of the Piemonte Overlay District of the Ontario Center Specific Plan. The 
proposed subdivision is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan 
(General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, as the project contribute to the 
establishment of “[a] dynamic, progressive city containing distinct neighborhoods and commercial districts 
that foster a positive sense of identity and belonging among residents, visitors, and businesses” (Goal CD1). 
Furthermore, the project will promote the City’s policy to “take actions that are consistent with the City being 
a leading urban center in Southern California while recognizing the diverse character of our existing viable 
neighborhoods” (Policy CD1-1 City Identity). 
 

(2) The design or improvement of the proposed Parcel Map is consistent with the goals, 
policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan, and applicable specific plans and planned unit developments. The 
proposed Tentative Tract/Parcel Map is located within the Mixed-Use land use district of the Policy Plan 
Land Use Map, and the Retail land use district of the Piemonte Overlay District. The proposed design or 
improvement of the subdivision is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy 
Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, as the project will provide 
“[a] high level of design quality resulting in public spaces, streetscapes, and developments that are 
attractive, safe, functional and distinct (Goal CD2). Furthermore, the project will promote the City’s policy 
to “collaborate with the development community to design and build neighborhoods, streetscapes, sites, 
outdoor spaces, landscaping and buildings to reduce energy demand through solar orientation, maximum 
use of natural daylight, passive solar and natural ventilation, building form, mechanical and structural 
systems, building materials and construction techniques” (Policy CD2-7 Sustainability). 
 

(3) The site is physically suitable for the type of development proposed. The project site 
meets the minimum lot area and dimensions of the Retail land use district of the Piemonte Overlay District, 
and is physically suitable for the type of commercial and mixed-use development proposed in terms of 
zoning, land use and development activity proposed, and existing and proposed site conditions. 
 

(4) The site is physically suitable for the density/intensity of development proposed. 
The project site is proposed for commercial and mixed-use development floor area ratio of 0.75. The project 
site meets the minimum lot area and dimensions of the Retail land use district of the Piemonte Overlay 
District, and is physically suitable for this proposed density / intensity of development. 
 

(5) The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements thereon, are not likely 
to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or 
their habitat. The project site is not located in an area that has been identified as containing species 
identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies or 
regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, nor 
does the site contain any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community, and no wetland habitat is 
present on site; therefore, the design of the subdivision, or improvements proposed thereon, are not likely 

Item D - 5 of 67



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT19-001 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 6 

to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or their 
habitat. 
 

(6) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, are not likely to 
cause serious public health problems. The design of the proposed subdivision, and the multitenant 
commercial building improvements existing or proposed on the project site, are not likely to cause serious 
public health problems, as The project is not anticipated to involve the transport, use, or disposal of 
hazardous materials during either construction or project implementation, include the use of hazardous 
materials or volatile fuels, nor are there any known stationary commercial or industrial land uses within 
close proximity to the subject site that use/store hazardous materials to the extent that they would pose a 
significant hazard to visitors or occupants to the project site. 
 

(7) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, will not conflict 
with easements acquired by the public at large for access through, or use of property within, the 
proposed subdivision. The proposed subdivision has provided for all necessary public easements and 
dedications for access through, or use of property within, the proposed subdivision. Furthermore, all such 
public easements and dedications have been designed pursuant to: (a) the requirements of the Policy Plan 
component of The Ontario Plan and applicable area plans; (b) applicable specific plans or planned unit 
developments; (c) applicable provisions of the City of Ontario Development Code; (d) applicable master 
plans and design guidelines of the City; and (e) applicable Standard Drawings of the City. 
 

SECTION 6: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 5, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission 
APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included 
as Attachment A of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 7: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 8: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of June 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 

Item D - 6 of 67



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT19-001 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

 Page 7 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 

 

Project Site 

Item D - 7 of 67



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT19-001 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 8 

Exhibit C—TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP 

 

Item D - 8 of 67



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT19-001 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

 Page 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 
 

Item D - 9 of 67



 
 
Meeting Date: June 17, 2019 
 
File No: PMTT19-001 (TM 19993) 
 
Related Files: PDEV19-004 
 
Project Description: A Tentative Parcel Map (File No. PMTT19-001/TM 19993) to subdivide 10.68 
acres of land into two parcels, located at the southwest corner of Via Turin and Fourth Street, at 4170 East 
Fourth Street, within the Retail land use district of the Piemonte Overlay District of the Ontario Center 
Specific Plan. (APN: 0210-204-27); submitted by Ontario Covenant Group, LLC. 
 
Prepared By: Jeanie Irene Aguilo, Associate Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2418 (direct) 
Email: jaguilo@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development 
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of 
approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits. 
 

(a) Tentative Parcel/ Map approval shall become null and void 2 years following the 
effective date of application approval, unless the final parcel/tract map has been recorded, or a time 
extension has been approved by the Planning Commission pursuant to Development Code Section 
2.02.025 (Time Limits and Extensions). This Permit does not supersede any individual time limits specified 
herein for performance of specific conditions or improvements. 
 

2.2 Subdivision Map. 
 

(a) The Final Parcel Map shall be in conformance with the approved Tentative 
Tract/Parcel Map on file with the City. Variations rom the approved Tentative Tract/Parcel Map may be 
reviewed and approved by the Planning Department. A substantial variation from the approved Tentative 
Tract/Parcel Map may require review and approval by the Planning Commission, as determined by the 
Planning Director. 
 

(b) Tentative Tract/Parcel Map approval shall be subject to all conditions, 
requirements and recommendations from all other departments/agencies provided on the attached 
reports/memorandums. 
 

Planning Department 
Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item D - 10 of 67



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT19-001 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

(c) The subject Tentative Parcel Map for condominium purposes shall require the 
recordation of a condominium plan concurrent with the recordation of the Final Tract/Parcel Map and 
CC&Rs. 
 

(d) Pursuant to California Government Section 66474.9, the subdivider agrees that it 
will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Ontario or its agents, officers and employees from any 
claim, action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set 
aside, void or annul any approval of the City of Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission 
or other authorized board or officer of this subdivision, which action is brought within the time period 
provided for in Government Code Section 66499.37. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the subdivider 
of any such claim, action or proceeding and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.3 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 
 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but 
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading, 
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans 
on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file 
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included 
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 
 

2.4 Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs)/Mutual Access and Maintenance 
Agreements. 
 

(a) Existing CC&Rs shall be revised for the Project and shall be recorded prior to the 
issuance of a building permit. 

 
(b) Revised CC&Rs shall ensure reciprocal parking and access between the project 

site and the adjacent parcel. 
 

2.5 Environmental Review.  
 

(a) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction 
with File No. File No. PSPA16-003, a Specific Plan Amendment for which a Mitigated Negative Declaration 
was previously adopted by the City Council on May 16, 2017. This application introduces no new significant 
environmental impacts. The City's "Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the 
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed. The previously adopted mitigation measures shall 
be a condition of project approval, and are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction 
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner 
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is 
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or 
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures 
implemented. 

Item D - 11 of 67



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT19-001 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
 

2.6 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of 
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.7 Additional Fees. 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination 
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made 
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time 
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building 
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established 
by resolution of the City Council. 

Item D - 12 of 67



Item D - 13 of 67



Item D - 14 of 67



Item D - 15 of 67



Item D - 16 of 67



Item D - 17 of 67



Item D - 18 of 67



Item D - 19 of 67



Item D - 20 of 67



Item D - 21 of 67



Item D - 22 of 67



Item D - 23 of 67



Item D - 24 of 67



AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CD No.:

PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement 
Dedication

Real Estate Transaction

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

Airspace Avigation 
Easement Area

Allowable 
Height:

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones: 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 1

Zone 6

Allowable Height:

PMTT19-001 & PDEV19-004

4200 East Fourth Street

0210-204-27

Parking Lot

Subdivide 10.68 acres into 2 parcels and construct a 5,000 SF multi-tenant
commercial building

10.68 ac

N/A

ONT

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT.

Lorena Mejia

909-395-2276

Jeanie Aguilo

3/28/2019

2019-004

n/a

30 ft

70 FT

Item D - 25 of 67



Item D - 26 of 67



 

 TO: PLANNING DEPARTMENT, Jeanie Irene Aguilo 

 FROM: BUILDING DEPARTMENT, Kevin Shear 

 DATE: January 15, 2019 

 SUBJECT: PMTT19-001 

      

 

 1. The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time. 

   No comments.   

 

 

 

KS:lm 

 

                  CITY OF ONTARIO 
                                             MEMORANDUM 

Item D - 27 of 67



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
 

TO:  Jeanie Irene Aguilo, Assistant Planner 

  Planning Department 

 

FROM:  Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 

  Fire Department 

 

DATE:  January 31, 2019 

 

SUBJECT: PMTT19-001 - A Parcel Map to subdivide 10.68 acres of land into two 

parcels (project site to total 1.01 acres of land) generally located near the 

terminus of Via Turin at Fourth Street at 4200 E. Fourth Street, within the 

Retail land use designation of the Ontario Center Piemonte Specific Plan 

(APN: part of 0210-204-27). Related file: PDEV19-004 

 
 

   The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.  

   No Comments 

 
 

Item D - 28 of 67



Item D - 29 of 67



 

 Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
June 17, 2019 

 
DECISION NO.: [insert #] 
 
FILE NO.: PDEV19-004 
 
DESCRIPTION: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV19-004) to construct one multitenant 
commercial building totaling 5,000 square feet on 1.01 acres of land located at the southwest corner of Via 
Turin and Fourth Street, at 4170 East Fourth Street, within the Retail land use district of the Piemonte 
Overlay District of the Ontario Center Specific Plan. (APN: 0210-204-27); submitted by Ontario Covenant 
Group, LLC. 
 
 
 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 
 

Ontario Covenant Group, LLC, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application 
requesting Development Plan approval, File No. PDEV19-004, as described in the subject of this Decision 
(herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 
 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 10.68 acres of land generally located on 
the south side of Fourth Street, approximately 600 feet west of Milliken Avenue, at 4170 East Fourth Street, 
within the Piemonte Overlay District of the Ontario Center Specific Plan, and is depicted in Exhibit A: Aerial 
Photograph, attached. The proposed Tentative Parcel Map comprises the easterly one-half of a fully 
developed multitenant shopping center, which is anchored by a Target retail store located on the project 
site. Three retail pad buildings are situated on the northern boundary of the shopping center, along Fourth 
Street. The balance of the shopping center on the adjacent existing parcel to the west includes major 
tenants such as Big Al’s (Bowling Center and Sports Bar), DSW Shoes, and PetSmart (PM 19163). The 
property north of the project site,, across Fourth Street, is developed with an apartment complex and is 
located within the City of Rancho Cucamonga. The property to the east, is anchored by a Kohl’s retail store 
and Wells Fargo Bank, as a separate pad site. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning designations, 
and specific plan land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 
 

 Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site Parking Lot/Vacant MU (Mixed Use) Ontario Center Specific 
Plan 

Retail land use district 
of the Piemonte 
Overlay District 

North Residential (Ironwood 
Apartments) 

City of Rancho 
Cucamonga Mixed 

Use 

City of Rancho 
Cucamonga Empire 
Lakes Specific Plan 

Planning Area 6 

South Target MU (Mixed Use) Ontario Center Specific 
Plan 

Retail land use district 
of the Piemonte 
Overlay District 

East Wells Fargo MU (Mixed Use) Ontario Center Specific 
Plan 

Retail land use district 
of the Piemonte 
Overlay District 

Item D - 30 of 67



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-004 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 2 

 Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

West 
Ontario Smiles 
Dentistry and 
Orthodontics 

MU (Mixed Use) Ontario Center Specific 
Plan 

Retail land use district 
of the Piemonte 
Overlay District 

 
(2) Project Description: 

 
(a) Background —The project site is fully improved and was developed in conjunction 

with File No. PDEV05-076, a Development Plan to construct a 254,420 square foot multi-tenant commercial 
center, which was approved by Planning Commission in March 2006, and File No. PDEV06-057, a 
Development Plan to construct three pad buildings totaling 20,327 square feet, which was approved by the 
Development Advisory Board in November 2006. The shopping center’s final phase of construction was 
completed around September 2008. 
 
The proposed Development Plan is being processed concurrently with a Tentative Parcel Map (File No. 
PMTT19-001) that will subdivide the 10.68-acre project site into two parcels. Parcel 1, the larger parcel 
containing the existing Target retail store, will be 9.67 acres in size.  Parcel 2 is 1.01 acre in size and will 
facilitate the proposed Development Plan, which consists of the construction of a 5,000-square foot 
multitenant commercial building with a drive-thru facility. The multitenant building will be divided into three 
separate suites including: Suite A, totaling 2,000 square feet in area, is located on the northern end of 
building and will be occupied by a fast food restaurant with drive-thru facility; Suite B, the center suite, 
totaling 989 square feet in area, will be occupied by a sit-down restaurant; and Suite C, totaling 1,897 
square feet in area, is located at the southern end of the building and will be occupied by a retail user. The 
building is situated at the northeastern portion of the project site, and has an approximate 31-foot building 
setback from the east property line (rear), a 33-foot building setback from the north property line adjacent 
to Fourth Street (side), a 95-foot building setback from the west property line (front), and a 114-foot building 
setback from the south property line. 
 

(b) Site Access/Circulation — The multitenant building’s primary public entrance faces 
west, toward the parking lot and an existing commercial building (dental office) on the adjacent parcel. The 
multitenant building will have a similar layout to the existing commercial/retail pad buildings within the 
shopping center, with parking surrounding the building. The drive-thru facility will have a stacking length of 
274 feet, which will accommodate up to 11 vehicles behind the first drive-thru window (a minimum of 6 
stacking spaces are required). 
 

(c) Parking — The Project has provided off-street parking pursuant to the “Fast Food 
Restaurants”, “Full-Service Restaurant”, and “General and Convenience Retail” parking standards specified 
in the Development Code. The multitenant building will require a total of 27 parking spaces and 45 are 
proposed, exceeding the minimum off-street parking requirement for the Project. Additionally, the 
Conditions of Approval require that the existing CC&Rs must be revised to include a shared parking and 
access agreement between the project site and the adjoining parcel. 
 

(d) Architecture — The exterior building design is based on the architectural design of 
the existing shopping center, which incorporates a blending of contemporary urban Southern California 
design and Tuscan influences. This old-world prototype has been refined, adapted and embellished into a 
truly eclectic classic type with shallow pitched hipped roof and decorative columns. The architecture of the 
building complements the architecture of the existing commercial/retail buildings surrounding the project 
site. The project’s exterior building materials include: smooth stucco wall finishes with a light and dark beige 
color palette; precast concrete columns; storefront glazing with bronze mullions, and awnings to match the 
shopping center. 
 

Item D - 31 of 67



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-004 
June 17, 2019 

Page 3 

The multitenant building’s primary entrance is on the west side of the building. Corresponding design 
features such as archways and awnings, are integrated into the east and west elevations. This treatment 
is also featured on the north and  south elevations, facing Fourth Street and the project’s south property 
line, respectively, and provides horizontal and vertical changes, which breaks up the massing of each 
elevation. Furthermore, the drive-thru features a trellis canopy design to match the rest of the building. 

The mechanical equipment will be roof-mounted and obscured from public view by parapet walls and, if 
necessary, equipment screens, which will incorporate design features consistent with the building’s 
architecture. 

Staff believes that the proposed project illustrates the type of high-quality architecture promoted by the 
Development Code and the Piemonte Overlay District of the Ontario Center Specific Plan. This is 
exemplified through the use of: 

 Articulation in the building footprint, incorporating a combination of recessed and popped-out
wall areas; 

 Articulation in the building parapet/roof line, which serves to accentuate the building’s entries
and breaks up large expanses of building wall; 

 A mix of exterior materials, finishes and fixtures; and
 Incorporation of base and top treatments defined by changes in color, materials and recessed

wall areas. 
 Designed to ensure that it’s massing and proportion, along with its colors and architectural

detailing, are consistent on all building walls, giving a four-sided (360-degree) appearance. 

(e) Landscaping — The project provides substantial landscaping along the Fourth
Street frontage. The development standards of the Piemonte Overlay of the Ontario Center Specific Plan 
require a minimum 10 percent landscape coverage, which the project meets (10 percent landscape 
coverage has been provided). The proposed on-site and off-site landscape improvements will assist 
towards creating a walkable, safe area for pedestrians to access the project site. The landscape plan 
incorporates several 24–inch box trees, which include Chitalpa trees to match the existing species within 
the parking lot, along with existing London Plane trees along street and entryways and Italian Cypress trees 
along the drive aisles that will be protected and preserved in place. In addition, 5-gallon shrubs will be 
provided throughout the project site, which includes Dwarf Weeping Bottlebrush and Little John plantings. 
A variety of shrubs and groundcovers will also be provided, which are low water usage or drought tolerant 
(see Exhibit D: Landscape Plan). 

(f) Utilities — Public utilities (water and sewer) are available to serve the project.
Furthermore, the Applicant has submitted a Preliminary Water Quality Management Plan (PWQMP), which 
establishes the project’s compliance with storm water discharge/water quality requirements. The PWQMP 
includes site design measures that capture runoff and pollutant transport by minimizing impervious surfaces 
and maximizes low impact development (LID) best management practices (BMPs), such as retention and 
infiltration, biotreatment, and evapotranspiration. The PWQMP proposes the use of vegetated swales, 
which lead to underground stormwater infiltration systems installed for the project. Any overflow drainage 
will be conveyed to the public street by way of parkway culverts. 

Part II—RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with 
File No. PSPA16-003, a Specific Plan Amendment for which a Mitigated Negative Declaration was 

Item D - 32 of 67



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-004 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 4 

previously adopted by the City Council on May 16, 2017, and this Application introduces no new significant 
environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the 
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to CEQA (Public Resources Code Section 21000 
et seq.), and an initial study has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on June 17, 2019, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the previous MND and 
supporting documentation. Based upon the facts and information contained in the previous MND and 
supporting documentation, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with File 
No. File No. PSPA16-003, a Specific Plan Amendment for which a Mitigated Negative Declaration was 
previously adopted by the City Council on May 16, 2017; and 

Item D - 33 of 67



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-004 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 5 

 
(2) The previous MND contains a complete and accurate reporting of the environmental 

impacts associated with the Project; and 
 

(3) The previous MND was completed in compliance with CEQA and the Guidelines 
promulgated thereunder, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; and 
 

(4) The previous MND reflects the independent judgment of the Planning Commission; and 
 

(5) The proposed project will introduce no new significant environmental impacts beyond those 
previously analyzed in the previous MND, and all mitigation measures previously adopted with the MND, 
are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 2: Subsequent or Supplemental Environmental Review Not Required. Based on 
the information presented to the DAB, and the specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the DAB finds 
that the preparation of a subsequent or supplemental MND is not required for the Project, as the Project: 
 

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the MND that will require major revisions to the 
MND due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the 
severity of previously identified significant effects; and 

 
(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances under which the 

MND was prepared, that will require major revisions to the MND due to the involvement of new significant 
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified significant effects; 
and 

 
(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not known and could 

not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the ND was certified/adopted, 
that shows any of the following: 
 

(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the MND; or 
 
(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than 

shown in the MND; or 
 
(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in 

fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the Project, but the City 
declined to adopt such measures; or  

 
(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those analyzed in 

the MND would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but which the City 
declined to adopt. 
 

SECTION 3: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one of 
the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of 
the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 
 

SECTION 4: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 
Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 

Item D - 34 of 67



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-004 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 6 

that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommend body for the Project, the DAB 
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 5: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the goals, 
policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is located within the Mixed-Use land use district 
of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the Retail land use district of the Piemonte Overlay District of the 
Ontario Center Specific Plan. The development standards and conditions under which the proposed Project 
will be constructed and maintained, is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, 
Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan; and 
 

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to 
location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint identified 
on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has been 
designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and the Retail land 
use district of the Piemonte Overlay District of the Ontario Center Specific Plan, including standards relative 
to the particular land use proposed (multitenant commercial building), as-well-as building intensity, building 
and parking setbacks, building height, number of off-street parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site 
landscaping, and fences, walls and obstructions; and 
 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the quality of 
existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to protect 
the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed project. The 
Development Advisory Board has required certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, 
which have been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Piemonte Overlay of the Ontario Center 
Specific Plan are maintained; [ii] the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; 
[iii] the project will not result in any significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony with 
the area in which it is located; and [v] the project will be in full conformity with the Vision, City Council 
Priorities and Policy Plan components of The Ontario Plan, and the Piemonte Overlay of the Ontario Center 
Specific Plan; and 
 

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards and 
design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or planned unit 
development. The proposed Project has been reviewed for consistency with the general development 
standards and guidelines of the Piemonte Overlay of the Ontario Center Specific Plan that are applicable 
to the proposed Project, including building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, amount 
of off-street parking and loading spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, 
on-site landscaping, and fences and walls, as-well-as those development standards and guidelines 

Item D - 35 of 67



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-004 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 7 

specifically related to the particular land use being proposed (multitenant commercial building). As a result 
of this review, the Development Advisory Board has determined that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the development standards and 
guidelines described in the Piemonte Overlay of the Ontario Center Specific Plan. 
 

SECTION 6: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 5, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission 
APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included 
as Attachment A of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 7: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 8: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of June 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 

Item D - 36 of 67



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-004 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

 Page 8 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 

 
  

Project Site 

Item D - 37 of 67



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-004 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 9 

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN (Insert North Arrow) 

  

Item D - 38 of 67



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-004 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 10 

Exhibit C—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS 

 
  

Item D - 39 of 67



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-004 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 11 

Exhibit D—LANDSCAPE PLAN 

Item D - 40 of 67



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-004 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

 Page 12 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 
 

Item D - 41 of 67



 
 
Meeting Date: June 17, 2019 
 
File No: PDEV19-004 
 
Related Files: PMTT19-001 (TM 19993) 
 
Project Description: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV19-004) to construct one multitenant 
commercial building totaling 5,000 square feet, located at the southwest corner of Via Turin and Fourth 
Street, at 4170 East Fourth Street, within the Retail land use district of the Piemonte Overlay District of the 
Ontario Center Specific Plan. (APN: 0210-204-27); submitted by Ontario Covenant Group, LLC. 
 
Prepared By: Jeanie Irene Aguilo, Associate Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2418 (direct) 
Email: jaguilo@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development 
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of 
approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits. 
 

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following the 
effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced, 
and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director. 
This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or any other departmental 
conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific conditions or improvements. 
 

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 
 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but 
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading, 
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans 
on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file 
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 
 

Planning Department 
Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item D - 42 of 67



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-004 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included 
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 
 

2.3 Landscaping.  
 

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and irrigation 
systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping). 
 

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; Landscape 
Planning Division. 
 

(c) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation Construction 
Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping) have been 
approved by the Landscape Planning Division. 
 

(d) Changes to approved Landscape and Irrigation Construction Documentation 
Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation system design, shall be 
resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning Division, prior to the commencement 
of the changes. 
 

2.4 Walls and Fences. All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements of 
Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions). 
 

2.5 Parking, Circulation and Access. 
 

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and lighting 
requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading). 
 

(b) All drive approaches shall be provided with an enhanced pavement treatment. The 
enhanced paving shall extend from the back of the approach apron, into the site, to the first intersecting 
drive aisle or parking space. 

 
(c) Areas provided to meet the City’s parking requirements, including off-street parking 

and loading spaces, access drives, and maneuvering areas, shall not be used for the outdoor storage of 
materials and equipment, nor shall it be used for any other purpose than parking. 

 
(d) The required number of off-street parking spaces and/or loading spaces shall be 

provided at the time of site and/or building occupancy. All parking and loading spaces shall be maintained 
in good condition for the duration of the building or use. 

 
(e) Parking spaces specifically designated and conveniently located for use by the 

physically disabled shall be provided pursuant to current accessibility regulations contained in State law 
(CCR Title 24, Part 2, Chapters 2B71, and CVC Section 22507.8). 

 
(f) Bicycle parking facilities, including bicycle racks, lockers, and other secure 

facilities, shall be provided in conjunction with development projects pursuant to current regulations 
contained in CALGreen (CAC Title 24, Part 11). 
 

2.6 Outdoor Loading and Storage Areas. 
 

(a) Loading facilities shall be designed and constructed pursuant to Development 
Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading). 
 

Item D - 43 of 67



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-004 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

(b) Areas designated for off-street parking, loading, and vehicular circulation and 
maneuvering, shall not be used for the outdoor storage of materials or equipment. 
 

(c) Outdoor loading and storage areas, and loading doors, shall be screened from 
public view pursuant to the requirements of Development Code Paragraph 6.02.025.A.2 (Screening of 
Outdoor Loading and Storage Areas, and Loading Doors) Et Seq. 
 

2.7 Site Lighting. 
 

(a) All off-street parking facilities shall be provided with nighttime security lighting 
pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 4-11.08 (Special Residential Building Provisions) and Section 
4-11.09 (Special Commercial/Industrial Building Provisions), designed to confine emitted light to the parking 
areas. Parking facilities shall be lighted from sunset until sunrise, daily, and shall be operated by a photocell 
switch. 
 

(b) Unless intended as part of a master lighting program, no operation, activity, or 
lighting fixture shall create illumination on any adjacent property. 
 

2.8 Mechanical and Rooftop Equipment. 
 

(a) All exterior roof-mounted mechanical, heating and air conditioning equipment, and 
all appurtenances thereto, shall be completely screened from public view by parapet walls or roof screens 
that are architecturally treated so as to be consistent with the building architecture. 
 

(b) All ground-mounted utility equipment and structures, such as tanks, transformers, 
HVAC equipment, and backflow prevention devices, shall be located out of view from a public street, or 
adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or decorative low garden walls. 
 

2.9 Security Standards. The Project shall comply with all applicable requirements of Ontario 
Municipal Code Title 4 (Public Safety), Chapter 11 (Security Standards for Buildings). 
 

2.10 Signs. 
 

(a) All Project signage shall comply with the requirements of the Piemonte 
Comprehensive Sign Program (File No. PSGP17-003) and the Ontario Development Code Division 8.1 
(Sign Regulations). 

 
(b) Individual sign plans (3 copies) for the project shall be submitted for separate 

review and approval to the Planning and Building Departments prior to installation. 
 

2.11 Sound Attenuation. The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so as not 
to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noised levels set forth in Ontario Municipal Code Title 5 (Public 
Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise). 
 

2.12 Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs)/Mutual Access and Maintenance 
Agreements. 
 

(a) Existing CC&Rs shall be revised for the Project and shall be recorded prior to the 
issuance of a building permit. 

 
(b) Revised CC&Rs shall ensure reciprocal parking and access between the project 

site and the adjacent parcel. 
 

Item D - 44 of 67



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-004 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

2.13 Environmental Review.  
 

(a) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction 
with File No. File No. PSPA16-003, a Specific Plan Amendment for which a Mitigated Negative Declaration 
was previously adopted by the City Council on May 16, 2017. This application introduces no new significant 
environmental impacts. The City's "Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the 
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed. The previously adopted mitigation measures shall 
be a condition of project approval, and are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction 
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner 
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is 
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or 
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures 
implemented. 
 

2.14 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of 
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.15 Additional Fees. 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination 
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made 
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time 
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building 
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established 
by resolution of the City Council. 
 

2.16 Additional Requirements. 
 

(a) The approval of File No. PDEV19-004 shall be final and conclusive upon the 
approval of File No. PMTT19-001 / TM 19993 by the Planning Commission. 

Item D - 45 of 67



Item D - 46 of 67



Item D - 47 of 67



Item D - 48 of 67



Item D - 49 of 67



Item D - 50 of 67



Item D - 51 of 67



Item D - 52 of 67



Item D - 53 of 67



Item D - 54 of 67



Item D - 55 of 67



Item D - 56 of 67



Item D - 57 of 67



CITY OF ONTARIO 
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION 

303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 

PRELIMINARY PLAN 
CORRECTIONS 

Sign Off 

 2/11/19 
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner Date 

Reviewer’s Name:  
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner 

Phone: 
(909) 395-2615 

 
D.A.B. File No.:                                           
PDEV19-004 

Case Planner: 
Jeanie Aguilo 

Project Name and Location:  
Target Center 4th ST Outparcel 
4200 E Fourth St 
Applicant/Representative: 
Ontario Covenant Group ,LLC Julie Margetich 
2044 California Ave 
Corona, Ca 92881 
 
 
 

 
 
A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated 05/09/2019) meets the Standard Conditions for New 
Development and has been approved with the consideration that the following 
conditions below be met upon submittal of the landscape construction documents. 

 
 
A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated) has not been approved.                               
Corrections noted below are required prior to Preliminary Landscape Plan approval. 

A RESPONSE SHEET IS REQUIRED WITH RESUBMITTAL OR PLANS WILL BE RETURNED AS INCOMPLETE 
 

Civil/ Site Plans 
1. Show any transformers located in planter areas, set back 5’ from paving all sides. 06/04/2019 Not 

complete; show and note on plans. 
2. Show backflow devices set back 4’ from paving all sides. Locate on level grade. 06/04/2019 Not 

complete; show and note on plans. 
3. Locate utilities including light standards, fire hydrants, water, drain and sewer lines to not conflict 

with required tree locations. Move Fire water line out of landscape planter. 06/04/2019 Not complete; 
show and note on plans. 

4. Note for compaction to be no greater than 85% at landscape areas. All finished grades at 1 ½” below 
finished surfaces. Slopes to be maximum 3:1. 06/04/2019 Not complete; add note on plans. 

5. Dimension all planters to have a minimum 5’ wide inside dimension, except where noted. 06/04/2019 
Not complete. 

6. Dimension, show and call out for step-outs at parking spaces adjacent to planters; a 12” wide 
monolithic concrete curb, DG paving or pavers with edging. 06/04/2019  Not complete. 

7. Add Note to Grading and Landscape Plans: Landscape areas where compaction has occurred due 
to grading activities and where trees or storm water infiltration areas are located shall be loosened 
by soil fracturing. For trees a 12’x12’x18” deep area; for storm water infiltration the entire area shall 
be loosened. Add the following information on the plans: The back hoe method of soil fracturing shall 
be used to break up compaction. A 4” layer of Compost is spread over the soil surface before 
fracturing is begun. The back hoe shall dig into the soil lifting and then drop the soil immediately 
back into the hole. The bucket then moves to the adjacent soil and repeats. The Compost falls into 
the spaces between the soil chunks created. Fracturing shall leave the soil surface quite rough with 
large soil clods. These must be broken by additional tilling. Tilling in more Compost to the surface 
after fracturing per the soil report will help create an A horizon soil. Imported or reused Topsoil can 

Item D - 58 of 67



be added on top of the fractured soil as needed for grading. The Landscape Architect shall be 
present during this process and provide certification of the soil fracturing. For additional reference 
see Urban Tree Foundation – Planting Soil Specifications. 06/04/2019 Not complete. 
 

Landscape Plans 
8. Provide a tree inventory for existing trees include genus, species, trunk diameter, canopy width and 

condition. Show and note existing trees in good condition to remain and note trees proposed to be 
removed. Add tree protection notes on construction and demo plans to protect trees to remain.  
Replacement and mitigation for Heritage trees removed shall be equal to trunk diameter of the trees 
removed per the Development Code Tree Preservation Policy and Protection Measures, section 
6.05.020. 06/04/2019 Not complete. 

9. Show backflow devices with 36” high strappy leaf shrub screening and trash enclosures and 
transformers, a 4’-5’ high evergreen hedge screening. 06/04/2019 Not complete. 

10. Show all utilities on the landscape plans. Coordinate so utilities are clear of tree locations. 
06/04/2019  Not complete. 

11. Show Italian cypress in long planter by drive through to match the site spacing. 06/04/2019 Not 
complete. 

12. Match the existing shrub planting: ligustrum or boxwood hedges, Iceberg roses, Muhlenbergia. 
Change plants to match: Callistemon, Juncus. Limit Lavender that dies out to a single row with a 
background row behind to match other on site plants. 06/04/2019 Not complete. 

13. Call out type of proposed irrigation system (dripline and pop up stream spray tree bubblers with 
PCS). Include preliminary MAWA calcs. Proposed water use must meet water budget. 06/04/2019 
Not complete. 

14. Show 6’ diameter of mulch only at new trees. Detail irrigation dripline outside of mulched root zone. 
06/04/2019 Not complete. 

15. Provide agronomical soil testing and include report on landscape construction plans. 06/04/2019 Not 
complete. 

16. Landscape construction plans shall meet the requirements of the Landscape Development 
Guidelines. See http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards. 

17. After a project’s entitlement approval, the applicant shall pay all applicable fees for landscape plan 
check and inspections at a rate established by resolution of the City Council. Fees are: 
 Plan Check—less than 5 acres ..............................................$1,301.00 
 Inspection—Construction (up to 3 inspections per phase).........$278.00 
 Total…………………………………………………………..……$1,579.00 
 Inspection—Field – any additional.............................................. $83.00 
Landscape construction plans with building permit number for plan check may be emailed to: 
landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 
  

Item D - 59 of 67

http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards
mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CD No.:

PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement 
Dedication

Real Estate Transaction

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

Airspace Avigation 
Easement Area

Allowable 
Height:

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones: 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 1

Zone 6

Allowable Height:

PMTT19-001 & PDEV19-004

4200 East Fourth Street

0210-204-27

Parking Lot

Subdivide 10.68 acres into 2 parcels and construct a 5,000 SF multi-tenant
commercial building

10.68 ac

N/A

ONT

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT.

Lorena Mejia

909-395-2276

Jeanie Aguilo

3/28/2019

2019-004

n/a

30 ft

70 FT

Item D - 60 of 67



Item D - 61 of 67



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
 

TO:  Jeanie Irene Aguilo, Assistant Planner 

  Planning Department 

 

FROM:  Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 

  Fire Department 

 

DATE:  January 31, 2019 

 

SUBJECT: PDEV19-004 - A Development Plan to construct one multi-tenant 

commercial building totaling 5,000 square feet on 1.01 acres of land 

generally located near the terminus of Via Turin at Fourth Street at 4200 

E. Fourth Street, within the Retail land use designation of the Ontario 

Center Piemonte Specific Plan (APN: part of 0210-204-27; Parcel Map 

submitted concurrently). Related file: PMTT19-001 

 
 

   The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.  

   Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below. 

 
 
SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES: 

 

A. 2016 CBC Type of Construction:  Type V 
 

B. Type of Roof Materials:  Ordinary 
 

C. Ground Floor Area(s):  5,000 Sq. Ft. 
 

D. Number of Stories:  1  
 

E. Total Square Footage:  5,000 Sq. Ft. 
 

F. 2016 CBC Occupancy Classification(s):  M/B/A 
 

 

 

 

 

Item D - 62 of 67



 

2 of 4  

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 

 

1.0 GENERAL 

 

  1.1 The following are the Ontario Fire Department (“Fire Department”) requirements for this 

development project, based on the current edition of the California Fire Code (CFC), and the 
current versions of the Fire Prevention Standards (“Standards.”) It is recommended that the 
applicant or developer transmit a copy of these requirements to the on-site contractor(s) and 
that all questions or concerns be directed to the Bureau of Fire Prevention, at (909) 395-2029. 
For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at 
www.ontarioca.gov, click on “Fire Department” and then on “Standards and Forms.” 

 
  1.2 These Fire Department conditions of approval are to be included on any and all construction 

drawings.  
 
2.0 FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS 

 

  2.1 Fire Department vehicle access roadways shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all portions of 
the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved. Roadways 
shall be paved with an all-weather surface and shall be a minimum of twenty-four (24) ft. wide. 
See Standard #B-004.   

 
  2.2 In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all turns shall be 

designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25’) inside and forty-five feet (45’) outside 

turning radius per Standard #B-005.   
 

  2.3 Fire Department access roadways that exceed one hundred and fifty feet (150’) in length shall 
have an approved turn-around per Standard #B-002.   

 
  2.4 Access drive aisles which cross property lines shall be provided with CC&Rs, access 

easements, or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected 
properties, and copies of same shall be provided at the time of building plan check. 

 
  2.5 "No Parking-Fire Lane" signs and /or red painted curbs with lettering are required to be instal-

led in interior access roadways, in locations where vehicle parking would obstruct the 
minimum clear width requirement. Installation shall be per Standard #B-001.  

 
  2.7 Any time PRIOR to on-site combustible construction and/or storage, a minimum twenty-six 

(26) ft. wide circulating all weather access roads shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all 
portions of the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved by 
fire department and other emergency services.. 
 

3.0 WATER SUPPLY 

 

  3.1 The required fire flow per Fire Department standards, based on the 2016 California Fire Code, 
Appendix B, is 1500  gallons per minute (g.p.m.) for 2 hours at a minimum of 20 pounds per 
square inch (p.s.i.) residual operating pressure. 

 

Item D - 63 of 67

file://///ont-chfs02/Shared/Fire/Fire%20Prevention/Development/DAB%20Comments/www.ontarioca.gov


 

3 of 4  

 

  3.2 Off-site (public) fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a minimum 
spacing of three hundred foot (300’) apart, per Engineering Department specifications. 

 
  3.4 The water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and approved by the 

Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible construction to assure 
availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.  

 

4.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 

 

  4.2 Underground fire mains which cross property lines shall be provided with CC & R, easements, 
or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected properties, and 
copies of same shall be provided at the time of fire department plan check. The shared use of 
private fire mains or fire pumps is allowable only between immediately adjacent properties 
and shall not cross any public street. 

 
  4.3 An automatic fire sprinkler system is required.  The system design shall be in accordance with 

National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard Choose an item.. All new fire sprinkler 
systems, except those in single family dwellings, which contain twenty (20) sprinkler heads or 
more shall be monitored by an approved listed supervising station. An application along with 
detailed plans shall be submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire 
Department, prior to any work being done.   

 
  4.4 Wood frame buildings that are to be sprinkled shall have these systems in service (but not 

necessarily finaled) before the building is enclosed. 
 

  4.5 Fire Department Connections (FDC) shall be located on the address side of the building within 
one hundred fifty feet (150’) of a public fire hydrant on the same side of the street.  Provide 
identification for all fire sprinkler control valves and fire department connections per Standard 
#D-007. Raised curbs adjacent to Fire Department connection(s) shall be painted red, five feet 
either side, per City standards. 

 
  4.7 Portable fire extinguishers are required to be installed prior to occupancy per Standard #C-001.  

Please contact the Fire Prevention Bureau to determine the exact number, type and placement 
required. 

 
  4.8 A fixed fire extinguishing system is required for the protection of hood, duct, plenum and 

cooking surfaces.  This system must comply with National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 
Standards 17A and 96. An application with detailed plans shall be submitted, and a 
construction permit shall be issued by the Fire Department, prior to any work being done. 

 
 
5.0 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION FEATURES 

 
  5.1 The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of the 

development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible trash and 
debris both on and off the site. 

 

Item D - 64 of 67



 

4 of 4  

 

  5.2 Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such a 
position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property.  Multi-
tenant or building projects shall have addresses and/or suite numbers provided on the rear of 
the building.  Address numbers shall contrast with their background. See Section 9-1 6.06 of 
the Ontario Municipal Code and Standards #H-003 and #H-002.  
 

  5.4 Multiple unit building complexes shall have building directories provided at the main 
entrances.  The directories shall be designed to the requirements of the Fire Department, see 
Section 9-1 6.06 of the Ontario Municipal Code and Standard #H-003. 
 
 

Item D - 65 of 67



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
TO:  Jeanie Aguilo, Planning Department 
 
FROM:  Douglas Sorel, Police Department 
 
DATE:  January 11, 2019 
 
SUBJECT: PDEV19-004 – A DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CONSTRUCT A MULTI-

TENANT COMMERCIAL BUILDING AT VIA TURIN AND FOURTH 
STREET   

 
 
The “Standard Conditions of Approval” contained in Resolution No. 2017-027 apply. The 
applicant shall read and be thoroughly familiar with these conditions, including, but not limited 
to, the requirements below. 
 

 Required lighting for walkways, driveways, doorways, parking lots, hallways and other 
areas used by the public shall be provided. Lights shall operate via photosensor. 
Photometrics shall be provided to the Police Department and include the types of fixtures 
proposed and demonstrate that such fixtures meet the vandal-resistant requirement. 
Planned landscaping shall not obstruct lighting. 

 Rooftop addresses shall be installed on the buildings as stated in the Standard Conditions. 
The numbers shall be at a minimum 3 feet tall and 1 foot wide, in reflective white paint 
on a flat black background, and oriented with the bottom of the numbers towards the 
addressed street. 

 The Applicant shall comply with construction site security requirements as stated in the 
Standard Conditions. 

 
The Applicant is invited to contact Douglas Sorel at (909) 408-1873 with any questions or 
concerns regarding these conditions.    
 

Item D - 66 of 67



    

           TO:                  PLANNING DEPARTMENT, Jeanie Aguilo 

     FROM:                 BUILDING DEPARTMENT, Kevin Shear 

 DATE: January 15, 2019 

 SUBJECT: PDEV19-004 

      

   The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time. 

   No comments 

   Report below. 

               

Conditions of Approval 

 

1. Standard Conditions of Approval apply. 

2. The site address will be: 4170 E Fourth St. 

 
 

KS:lm 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                  CITY OF ONTARIO 
                                             MEMORANDUM 

Item D - 67 of 67



Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
June 17, 2019 

DECISION NO.: [insert #] 

FILE NO.: PCUP19-007 

DESCRIPTION: A Conditional Use Permit to establish nonstealth wireless telecommunications 
facility (Verizon Wireless) on an existing SCE transmission tower and related equipment enclosure on 4.7 
acres of land located at 3210 East Merrill Avenue, within the SCE Corridor land use district of the Subarea 
29 Specific Plan. APN: 0218-052-20; submitted by Verizon Wireless. 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

VERIZON WIRELESS, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application requesting 
Development Plan approval, File No. PCUP19-007, as described in the subject of this Decision (herein after 
referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 4.7 acres of land located at 3210 East
Merrill Avenue, and is depicted in Exhibit A: Aerial Photograph, attached. Existing land uses, General Plan 
and zoning designations, and specific plan land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 

Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site SCE Corridor 

LDR / OS-NR (Low 
Density Residential / 

Open Space Non 
Residential) 

Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan SCE Corridor 

North SCE Corridor 

LDR / OS-NR (Low 
Density Residential / 

Open Space Non 
Residential) 

Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan SCE Corridor 

South Flood Control System 
OS-NR (Open Space 
Non Residential) and 

City of Eastvale 

Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan 

Flood Control System 
and City of Eastvale 

East Residential LDR (Low Density 
Residential) 

Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan PA 27 (Cluster Homes) 

West Residential LDR (Low Density 
Residential) 

Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan PA 13 (Cluster Homes) 

(2) Project Description: The Applicant is requesting approval of a Conditional Use Permit to
establish a 60-foot tall non-stealth telecommunications facility attached to an existing SCE transmission 
tower, with an accompanying 225-square foot equipment enclosure and an 8-foot high decorative block 
wall enclosure (see Exhibit B – Site Plan and Exhibit C – Enlarged Site Plan, attached). This application 
was filed in conjunction with a Development Plan (refer to File No. PDEV19-019) to construct the proposed 
facility. 

Item E - 1 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PCUP19-007 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 2 

The maximum height allowed in the zone for a single telecommunication facility is 55-feet, and 65-feet for 
a collocated facility. The existing SCE tower is 134 feet and can accommodate two carriers; therefore, the 
proposed mounting height of the proposed wireless telecommunication antenna array is in compliance with 
the Development Code’s maximum height restrictions. As shown on the elevations (see Exhibit D – 
Elevations, attached), a future carrier could install their equipment on the SCE tower without creating 
interference with the other carrier, due to the extended tower height. The proposed T-Mobile facility will 
enhance coverage within the Ontario Ranch area, which is currently lacking (see Exhibits E and F – 
Propagation Maps, Existing and Predicted Coverage, attached).  
 
Access to the wireless facility will be taken through a non-exclusive access route from Merrill Avenue. 
Additionally, one parking space adjacent to the lease area will be provided in accordance with Development 
Code requirements, which will be used once or twice a month, when maintenance engineers visit the site. 
The nonstealth design is compatible with the current use of the site and will not interfere with land uses in 
the surrounding area. Moreover, the new wireless facility will not create a significant new source of 
automobile or truck traffic to or from the project site. 
 
Pursuant to the City’s Development Code, new antennas and wireless telecommunications facilities located 
within the AG (Agricultural) Overlay zoning district, or within 500 feet or less from residentially zoned 
property, requires Conditional Use Permit review and approval in conjunction with a Development Plan. 
The intent of a CUP application and review is to ensure that the proposed use will be operated in a manner 
consistent with all local regulations, and to ensure the use will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, 
or welfare, or materially injurious to uses, properties or improvements in the vicinity. Therefore, the 
Development Advisory Board has recommended that the Planning Commission impose certain safeguards, 
which have been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Development Code are maintained; [ii] 
the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the project will not result in any 
significant environmental impacts; and [iv] the project will be in harmony with the surrounding area in which 
it is proposed to be located. 
 

Part II—RECITALS 
  

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption (listed in CEQA 
Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the application of that categorical exemption 
is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 

Item E - 2 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PCUP19-007 
June 17, 2019 

Page 3 

Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and

WHEREAS, on June 17, 2019, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
Part III—THE DECISION 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the administrative record for 
the Project. Based upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all written 
and oral evidence presented to the DAB, the DAB finds as follows: 

(1) The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15303 (Class 3, New Construction or Conversion of Small 
Structures) of the CEQA Guidelines, which consists of the construction and location of limited numbers of 
new, small facilities or structures; installation of small new equipment and facilities in small structures; and 
the conversion of existing small structures from one use to another where only minor modifications are 
made in the exterior of the structure. 

(2) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set 
forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 

(3) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment of the DAB.

SECTION 3: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one of 
the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of 
the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 

SECTION 4: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 
Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB 
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 

Item E - 3 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PCUP19-007 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 4 

and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 5: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The scale and intensity of the proposed land use would be consistent with the scale 
and intensity of land uses intended for the particular zoning or land use district. The proposed 
location of the Conditional Use Permit is in accord with the objectives and purposes of the City of Ontario 
Development Code and the SCE Corridor zoning district, and the scale and intensity of land uses intended 
for the zoning district in which the use is proposed to be located. Furthermore, the proposed non-stealth 
wireless telecommunications facility land use will be established and operated consistent with the objectives 
and purposes, and development standards and guidelines, of the SCE Corridor land use district of the 
Subarea 29 Specific Plan; and 
 

(2) The proposed use at the proposed location, and the manner in which it will be 
operated and maintained, is consistent with the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, 
Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan. The 
proposed non-stealth wireless telecommunications facility land use will be located within the LDR / OS-NR 
(Low Density Residential / Open Space Non Residential) land use districts of the Policy Plan Land Use 
Map, and the SCE Corridor zoning district of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The development standards, 
and the conditions of approval under which the proposed land use will be established, operated, and 
maintained, are consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, City Council Priorities, 
and Policy Plan (General Plan) components of The Ontario Plan; and 
 

(3) The proposed use at the proposed location, and the manner in which it will be 
operated and maintained, is consistent with the objectives and requirements of the Development 
Code and any applicable specific plan or planned unit development. The proposed non-stealth 
wireless telecommunications facility  land use is located with the LDR / OS-NR (Low Density Residential / 
Open Space Non Residential) land use districts, and the SCE Corridor zoning district of the Subarea 29 
Specific Plan, and has been reviewed and conditioned to ensure the establishment, operation and 
maintenance of the proposed land use consistent with all applicable objectives, purposes, standards, and 
guidelines of the Development Code and Subarea 29 Specific Plan; and 
 

(4) The establishment, maintenance, and operation of the proposed use at the proposed 
location would not be detrimental or injurious to property and improvements within the vicinity, nor 
would it be detrimental to the health, safety, or general welfare of persons residing or working in 
the surrounding neighborhood. The Development Advisory Board has required certain safeguards, and 
impose certain conditions of approval, which have been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the 
Subarea 29 Specific Plan are maintained; [ii] the project will not endanger the public health, safety or 
general welfare; [iii] the project will not result in any significant environmental impacts; and [iv] the project 
will be in harmony with the surrounding area in which it is proposed to be located. 
 

SECTION 6: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 5, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission 
APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included 
as Attachment A of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 7: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 

Item E - 4 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PCUP19-007 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 5 

against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 8: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of June 2019. 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 

Item E - 5 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PCUP19-007 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

 Page 6 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 
 

  

Item E - 6 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PCUP19-007 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 7 

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN 

  

Item E - 7 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PCUP19-007 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 8 

Exhibit C—ENLARGED SITE PLAN 

  

Item E - 8 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PCUP19-007 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 9 

Exhibit D—ELEVATIONS 

 
  

Item E - 9 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PCUP19-007 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 10 

Exhibit D—ELEVATIONS 

 
  

Item E - 10 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PCUP19-007 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 11 

Exhibit E—PROPAGATION MAP, EXISTING COVERAGE 

  

Item E - 11 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PCUP19-007 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 12 

Exhibit F—PROPAGATION MAP, PREDICTED COVERAGE 

 

Item E - 12 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PCUP19-007 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

 Page 13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 
 

Item E - 13 of 47



 
 
Meeting Date: June 17, 2019 
 
File No: PCUP19-007 
 
Related Files: PDEV19-019 
 
Project Description: A Conditional Use Permit to establish nonstealth wireless telecommunications 
facility (Verizon Wireless) on an existing SCE transmission tower and related equipment enclosure on 4.7 
acres of land located at 3210 East Merrill Avenue, within the SCE Corridor land use district of the Subarea 
29 Specific Plan (APN: 0218-052-20); submitted by Verizon Wireless. 
 
Prepared By: Jeanie Irene Aguilo, Associate Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2418 (direct) 
Email: jaguilo@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development 
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of 
approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits. 
 

(a) Conditional Use Permit approval shall become null and void one year following the 
effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced, 
and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director, 
except that a Variance approved in conjunction with a Development Plan shall have the same time limits 
as said Development Plan. This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or 
any other departmental conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific 
conditions or improvements. 
 

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 
 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but 
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading, 
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans 
on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file 
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 

Planning Department 
Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item E - 14 of 47



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PCUP19-007 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included 
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 
 

2.3 Landscaping.  
 

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and irrigation 
systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping). 
 

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; Landscape 
Planning Division. 
 

2.4 Walls and Fences. All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements of 
Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions). 
 

2.5 Parking, Circulation and Access. 
 

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and lighting 
requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading). 
 

2.6 Site Lighting. 
 

(a) All off-street parking facilities shall be provided with nighttime security lighting 
pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 4-11.08 (Special Residential Building Provisions) and Section 
4-11.09 (Special Commercial/Industrial Building Provisions), designed to confine emitted light to the parking 
areas. Parking facilities shall be lighted from sunset until sunrise, daily, and shall be operated by a photocell 
switch. 
 

(b) Unless intended as part of a master lighting program, no operation, activity, or 
lighting fixture shall create illumination on any adjacent property. 
 

2.7 Mechanical and Rooftop Equipment. All ground-mounted utility equipment and structures, 
such as tanks, transformers, HVAC equipment, and backflow prevention devices, shall be located out of 
view from a public street, or adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or decorative low 
garden walls. 
 

2.8 Security Standards. The Project shall comply with all applicable requirements of Ontario 
Municipal Code Title 4 (Public Safety), Chapter 11 (Security Standards for Buildings). 
 

2.9 Signs. All Project signage shall comply with the requirements of Ontario Development 
Code Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations). 
 

2.10 Sound Attenuation. The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so as not 
to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noised levels set forth in Ontario Municipal Code Title 5 (Public 
Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise). 
 

2.11 Environmental Review.  
 

(a) The proposed project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act of 1970 (CEQA), as amended, and the Guidelines promulgated 
thereunder, pursuant to Section 15303 (Class 3, New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures) of 
the CEQA Guidelines, which consists of construction and location of limited numbers of new, small facilities 
or structures as well as the installation of small new equipment and facilities in small structures. 
 

Item E - 15 of 47



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PCUP19-007 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction 
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner 
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is 
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or 
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures 
implemented. 
  

2.12 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of 
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.13 Additional Fees. 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination 
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made 
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time 
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building 
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established 
by resolution of the City Council. 

Item E - 16 of 47



AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CD No.:

PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement 
Dedication

Real Estate Transaction

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

Airspace Avigation 
Easement Area

Allowable 
Height:

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones: 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 1

Zone 6

Allowable Height:

PDEV19-019 & PCUP19-007

3210 East Merrill Avenue

0218-052-20

SCE Transmission Tower Facility (134 FT Tall)

Development Plan to construct a wireless facility attached to an existing 134 FT tall
SCE Transmission Tower

4.7 acres

n/a

ONT & Chino

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT. The project is also located within the Chino Airport Influence Area and was evaluated and found to be
consistent with the policies and criteria as established by the California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook.
CONDITION: The project applicant is required to file a FAA Form 7460-1 due to potential electronic interference to
aircraft in flight and receive a determination of “No Hazard” from FAA prior to building permit issuance.

Lorena Mejia

909-395-2276

Jeanie Aguilo

4/23/19

2019-027

n/a

60 FT

200 FT +

200 FT+

Item E - 17 of 47



Item E - 18 of 47



Item E - 19 of 47



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
 TO: Jeanie Irene Aguilo, Associate Planner 

  Planning Department 

 

 FROM: Michelle Starkey, Deputy Fire Marshal 

  Bureau of Fire Prevention 

 

 DATE: April 11, 2019 

 

SUBJECT: PCUP19-007 A Conditional Use Permit to establish a non-stealth wireless 

telecommunications facility at 57 feet in height (Verizon Wireless), on an 

existing 134-foot tall SCE transmission tower, and equipment enclosure 

totaling 225 SF on 4.7 acres of land generally located at 3210 East Merrill 

Avenue, within the SCE Corridor land use designation of the Subarea 29 

Specific Plan (APN: 0218-052-20). Related File PDEV19-019 

 
 

   The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time. 

   No comments 

   Report below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

           

For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at 
www.ontarioca.gov , click on Fire Department and then on forms. 

Item E - 20 of 47

http://www.ontarioca.gov/


Item E - 21 of 47



X
X

Broadband Operations       Anna Vaca             Sr. Systems Analyst         4/9/2019

Item E - 22 of 47



 

 Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
June 17, 2019 

 
DECISION NO.: [insert #] 
 
FILE NO.: PDEV19-019 
 
DESCRIPTION: A Development Plan to construct a nonstealth wireless telecommunications facility 
(Verizon Wireless) on an existing SCE transmission tower and related equipment enclosure on 4.7 acres 
of land located at 3210 East Merrill Avenue, within the SCE Corridor land use district of the Subarea 29 
Specific Plan (APN: 0218-052-20); submitted by Verizon Wireless. 
 
 
 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 
 

VERIZON WIRELESS, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application requesting 
Development Plan approval, File No. PDEV19-019, as described in the subject of this Decision (herein after 
referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 
 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 4.7 acres of land located at 3210 East 
Merrill Avenue, and is depicted in Exhibit A: Aerial Photograph, attached. Existing land uses, General Plan 
and zoning designations, and specific plan land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 
 

 Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site SCE Corridor 

LDR / OS-NR (Low 
Density Residential / 

Open Space Non 
Residential) 

Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan SCE Corridor 

North SCE Corridor 

LDR / OS-NR (Low 
Density Residential / 

Open Space Non 
Residential) 

Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan SCE Corridor 

South Flood Control System 
OS-NR (Open Space 
Non Residential) and 

City of Eastvale 

Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan 

Flood Control System 
and City of Eastvale 

East Residential LDR (Low Density 
Residential) 

Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan PA 27 (Cluster Homes) 

West Residential LDR (Low Density 
Residential) 

Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan PA 13 (Cluster Homes) 

 
(2) Project Description: The Applicant is requesting approval of a Development Plan to 

construct a 60-foot tall non-stealth telecommunications facility attached to an existing SCE transmission 
tower, with an accompanying 225-square foot equipment enclosure and an 8-foot high decorative block 
wall enclosure (see Exhibit B – Site Plan and Exhibit C – Enlarged Site Plan, attached). This application 
was filed in conjunction with a Conditional Use Permit (refer to File No. PCUP19-007) to establish the 
proposed facility. 
 

Item E - 23 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-019 
June 17, 2019 

Page 2 

The maximum height allowed for a single-carrier telecommunication facility is 55-feet, and 65-feet for a 
collocated facility. The existing SCE tower is 134 feet and can accommodate two carriers; therefore, the 
proposed mounting height of the proposed wireless telecommunication antenna array is in compliance with 
the Development Code’s maximum height restrictions. As shown on the elevations (see Exhibit D – 
Elevations, attached), a future carrier could install their equipment on the SCE tower without creating 
interference with the other carrier, due to the extended tower height. The proposed T-Mobile facility will 
enhance coverage within the Ontario Ranch area, which is currently lacking (see Exhibits E and F – 
Propagation Maps, Existing and Predicted Coverage, attached).  

Access to the wireless facility will be taken through a non-exclusive access route from Merrill Avenue. 
Additionally, one parking space adjacent to the lease area will be provided in accordance with Development 
Code requirements, which will be used once or twice a month, when maintenance engineers visit the site. 
The nonstealth design is compatible with the current use of the site and will not interfere with land uses in 
the surrounding area. Moreover, the new wireless facility will not create a significant new source of 
automobile or truck traffic to or from the project site. 

Part II—RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption (listed in CEQA 
Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the application of that categorical exemption 
is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and

WHEREAS, on June 17, 2019, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 

Item E - 24 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-019 
June 17, 2019 

Page 3 

Part III—THE DECISION 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the administrative record for 
the Project. Based upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all written 
and oral evidence presented to the DAB, the DAB finds as follows: 

(1) The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15303 (Class 3, New Construction or Conversion of Small 
Structures) of the CEQA Guidelines, which consists of the construction and location of limited numbers of 
new, small facilities or structures; installation of small new equipment and facilities in small structures; and 
the conversion of existing small structures from one use to another where only minor modifications are 
made in the exterior of the structure. 

(2) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set
forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 

(3) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment of the DAB.

SECTION 2: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one of 
the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of 
the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 

SECTION 3: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
(“ALUCP”) Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et 
seq.) requires that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the 
State; and requires that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with 
the policies set forth in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council 
of the City of Ontario approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use 
Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport 
(“ONT”), which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles 
Counties, and limits future land uses and development within the Airport Influence Area, as they 
relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As 
the recommending body for the Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the facts and 
information contained in the Application and supporting documentation against the ALUCP 
compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), 
[2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection 
Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, 
therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of 
approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within the ALUCP. 

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 

Item E - 25 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-019 
June 17, 2019 

Page 4 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the goals, 
policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is located within the LDR / OS-NR (Low Density 
Residential / Open Space Non Residential) land use districts of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the 
SCE Corridor zoning district of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The development standards and conditions 
under which the proposed Project will be constructed and maintained, is consistent with the goals, policies, 
plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The 
Ontario Plan; and 

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to 
location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint identified 
on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has been 
designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and the SCE Corridor 
zoning district of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan, including standards relative to the particular land use 
proposed (non-stealth wireless telecommunications facility), as-well-as building intensity, building and 
parking setbacks, building height, number of off-street parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site 
landscaping, and fences, walls and obstructions; and 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the quality of 
existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to protect 
the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed project. The 
Development Advisory Board has required certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, 
which have been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan are 
maintained; [ii] the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the project will 
not result in any significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony with the area in which 
it is located; and [v] the project will be in full conformity with the Vision, City Council Priorities and Policy 
Plan components of The Ontario Plan, and the Subarea 29 Specific Plan; and 

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards and 
design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or planned unit 
development. The proposed Project has been reviewed for consistency with the general development 
standards and guidelines of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan that are applicable to the proposed Project, 
including building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and 
loading spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site landscaping, and 
fences and walls, as well as those development standards and guidelines specifically related to the 
particular land use being proposed (non-stealth wireless telecommunications facility). As a result of this 
review, the Development Advisory Board has determined that the Project, when implemented in conjunction 
with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the development standards and guidelines described 
in the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. 

SECTION 5: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 5, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission 
APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included 
as Attachment A of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 

SECTION 7: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 

Item E - 26 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-019 
June 17, 2019 

Page 5 

East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 

- - - - - - - - - - - - -

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of June 2019. 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 

Item E - 27 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-019 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

 Page 6 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 
 

  

Item E - 28 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-019 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 7 

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN 

  

Item E - 29 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-019 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 8 

Exhibit C—ENLARGED SITE PLAN 

  

Item E - 30 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-019 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 9 

Exhibit D—ELEVATIONS (SOUTHEAST AND NORTHEAST) 

 
  

Item E - 31 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-019 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 10 

Exhibit D—ELEVATIONS (NORTHWEST AND SOUTHWEST) 

 
  

Item E - 32 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-019 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 11 

Exhibit E—PROPAGATION MAP, EXISTING COVERAGE 

  

Item E - 33 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-019 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

Page 12 

Exhibit F—PROPAGATION MAP, PREDICTED COVERAGE 

 

Item E - 34 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-019 
June 17, 2019 
 
 

 Page 13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Item E - 35 of 47



 
 
Meeting Date: June 17, 2019 
 
File No: PDEV19-019 
 
Related Files: PCUP19-007 
 
Project Description: A Development Plan to construct a nonstealth wireless telecommunications facility 
(Verizon Wireless) on an existing SCE transmission tower and related equipment enclosure on 4.7 acres 
of land located at 3210 East Merrill Avenue, within the SCE Corridor land use district of the Subarea 29 
Specific Plan (APN: 0218-052-20); submitted by Verizon Wireless. 
 
Prepared By: Jeanie Irene Aguilo, Associate Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2418 (direct) 
Email: jaguilo@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development 
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of 
approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits. 
 

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following the 
effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced, 
and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director. 
This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or any other departmental 
conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific conditions or improvements. 
 

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 
 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but 
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading, 
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans 
on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file 
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 
 

Planning Department 
Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item E - 36 of 47



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-019 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included 
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 
 

2.3 Landscaping.  
 

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and irrigation 
systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping). 
 

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; Landscape 
Planning Division. 
 

2.4 Walls and Fences. All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements of 
Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions). 
 

2.5 Parking, Circulation and Access. 
 

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and lighting 
requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading). 
 

2.6 Site Lighting. 
 

(a) All off-street parking facilities shall be provided with nighttime security lighting 
pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 4-11.08 (Special Residential Building Provisions) and Section 
4-11.09 (Special Commercial/Industrial Building Provisions), designed to confine emitted light to the parking 
areas. Parking facilities shall be lighted from sunset until sunrise, daily, and shall be operated by a photocell 
switch. 
 

(b) Unless intended as part of a master lighting program, no operation, activity, or 
lighting fixture shall create illumination on any adjacent property. 
 

2.7 Mechanical and Rooftop Equipment. All ground-mounted utility equipment and structures, 
such as tanks, transformers, HVAC equipment, and backflow prevention devices, shall be located out of 
view from a public street, or adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or decorative low 
garden walls. 
 

2.8 Security Standards. The Project shall comply with all applicable requirements of Ontario 
Municipal Code Title 4 (Public Safety), Chapter 11 (Security Standards for Buildings). 
 

2.9 Signs. All Project signage shall comply with the requirements of Ontario Development 
Code Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations). 
 

2.10 Sound Attenuation. The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so as not 
to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noised levels set forth in Ontario Municipal Code Title 5 (Public 
Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise). 
 

2.11 Environmental Review.  
 

(a) The proposed project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act of 1970 (CEQA), as amended, and the Guidelines promulgated 
thereunder, pursuant to Section 15303 (Class 3, New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures) of 
the CEQA Guidelines, which consists of construction and location of limited numbers of new, small facilities 
or structures as well as the installation of small new equipment and facilities in small structures. 
 

Item E - 37 of 47



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-019 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction 
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner 
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is 
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or 
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures 
implemented. 
  

2.12 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of 
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.13 Additional Fees. 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination 
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made 
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time 
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building 
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established 
by resolution of the City Council. 
 

2.14 Additional Requirements. 
 

(a) Development Plan (File No. PDEV19-019) approval is contingent upon the 
Planning Commission approval of related Conditional Use Permit (File No. PCUP19-007). 

Item E - 38 of 47



AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CD No.:

PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement 
Dedication

Real Estate Transaction

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

Airspace Avigation 
Easement Area

Allowable 
Height:

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones: 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 1

Zone 6

Allowable Height:

PDEV19-019 & PCUP19-007

3210 East Merrill Avenue

0218-052-20

SCE Transmission Tower Facility (134 FT Tall)

Development Plan to construct a wireless facility attached to an existing 134 FT tall
SCE Transmission Tower

4.7 acres

n/a

ONT & Chino

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT. The project is also located within the Chino Airport Influence Area and was evaluated and found to be
consistent with the policies and criteria as established by the California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook.
CONDITION: The project applicant is required to file a FAA Form 7460-1 due to potential electronic interference to
aircraft in flight and receive a determination of “No Hazard” from FAA prior to building permit issuance.

Lorena Mejia

909-395-2276

Jeanie Aguilo

4/23/19

2019-027

n/a

60 FT

200 FT +

200 FT+

Item E - 39 of 47



Item E - 40 of 47



CITY OF ONTARIO 
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION 

303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Sign Off 

 
4/17/19 

Carolyn Bell, Sr. Landscape Architect Date 

Reviewer’s Name:  
Carolyn Bell, Sr Landscape Architect 

Phone: 
(909) 395-2237 

 D.A.B. File No.:                                           
PDEV19-019 

Case Planner: 
Jeanie Aquilo 

Project Name and Location:  
Verizon – Eastvale NCD 
Approx. 3210 East Merrill Ave 
Applicant/Representative: 
Spectrum Services – Chris Colton 
4405 E Airport Dr #100 
Ontario Ca 91761 

 

 
A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated 3/27/19) meets the Standard Conditions for New 
Development and has been approved with the consideration that the following 
conditions below be met upon submittal of the landscape construction documents. 

 

 

A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated  ) has not been approved.                               
Corrections noted below are required prior to Preliminary Landscape Plan approval. 

A RESPONSE SHEET IS REQUIRED WITH RESUBMITTAL OR PLANS WILL BE RETURNED AS INCOMPLETE 
 

1. A-1 Note contractor to locate power and fiber trenches and conduit runs min 10’ from existing tree 
locations. Add tree protection notes to demo and construction plans. See 
http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards 

2. A-1 Note contractor to replace dead or damaged landscape and irrigation cause by construction or 
from irrigation lines shut off. Coordinate construction or repairs with landscape maintenance 
personnel. 

3. After a project’s entitlement approval, the applicant shall pay all applicable fees at a rate 
established by resolution of the City Council. Typical fees are: 

Plan Check—less than 5 acres ..............................................$1,301.00 
Inspection—Construction (up to 3 inspections) ....................... $278.00 
Total………………………….....................................................$1,579.00 

 
Landscape construction plans with building permit number for plan check may be emailed to: 
landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 

Item E - 41 of 47

http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards
mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO:  Jeanie Irene Aguilo, Associate Planner 

  Planning Department 

 

FROM:  Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 

  Fire Department 

 

DATE:  May 21, 2019 

 

SUBJECT: PDEV19-019 - A Development Plan to construct a non-stealth wireless 

telecommunications facility at 57 feet in height (Verizon Wireless) on an 

existing 134-foot tall SCE transmission tower, and a 225-square foot 

equipment enclosure on 4.7 acres of land located at 3210 East Merrill Avenue, 

within the SCE Corridor land use designation of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan 

(APN: 0218-052-20). Related File: PCUP19-007. 

 
 

   The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time. 

   Report below. 

            

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 

8. Hand-portable fire extinguishers are required to be installed PRIOR to occupancy.  Con-
tact the Bureau of Fire Prevention Bureau during the latter stages of construction to deter-
mine the exact number, type and placement required per Ontario Fire Department 
Standard #C-001.  (Available upon request from the Fire Department or on the internet at 
http://www.ci.ontario.ca.us/index.cfm/34762) 

 
9. "No Parking/Fire Lane" signs and /or Red Painted Curbs with lettering are required to be 

installed in interior access roadways, in locations where vehicle parking would encroach 
on the 24-foot clear width requirement per Ontario Fire Department. Install per Ontario 
Fire Department Standards #B-001 and #B-004.  (Available upon request from the Fire 
Department or on the internet at http://www.ci.ontario.ca.us/index.cfm/34762) 

 
10. Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such 

a position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property.  
Multi-tenant or building projects shall have addresses and/or suite numbers provided on 
the rear of the building.  Said numbers shall contrast with their background.  (See Section 
9-1 6.06 Street Naming and Street Address Numbering of the Ontario Municipal Code 
and Ontario Fire Department Standards #H-003 and #H-002.)   

Item E - 42 of 47

http://www.ci.ontario.ca.us/index.cfm/34762
http://www.ci.ontario.ca.us/index.cfm/34762


H:\Projects\DEVs\2019\PDEV19-019, PCUP19-007 Verizon, Non-Stealth\Correspondence\Incoming\03-26-19 Submittal, 
Initial\PDEV19-019 Fire Conditions_05-21-19.docx – Rev 07-06 

21. The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of 
the development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible 
trash and debris both on and off the site. 

 
28. The developer shall transmit a copy of these requirements to his on-site contractor to 

foster a mutual understanding between on-site personnel and the Fire Marshal's office.  It 
is highly recommended that the developer and fire protection designer obtain a copy of 
the Ontario Fire Department Fire Protection System Information Checklist to aid in 
system design.  Development Advisory Board comments are to be included on the 
construction drawing. 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 
 
If the equipment cabinets are to contain any stationary storage battery systems, said systems shall 
comply with section 608 of the 2016 California Fire Code 
 

For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at 
www.ci.ontario.ca.us, click on Fire Department and then on forms. 
 

Item E - 43 of 47

http://www.ci.ontario.ca.us/


 

 TO: PLANNING DEPARTMENT, Jeanie Aguilo 

 FROM: BUILDING DEPARTMENT, Kevin Shear 

 DATE: April 03, 2019 

 SUBJECT: PDEV19-019 

      

 

 1. The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time. 

   No comments.   

 
 
 
KS:lr 

 

                  CITY OF ONTARIO 
                                             MEMORANDUM 

Item E - 44 of 47



Item E - 45 of 47



1

Jeanie Irene T. Aguilo

From: Raymond Chavez
Sent: Thursday, April 11, 2019 11:07 AM
To: Jeanie Irene T. Aguilo
Cc: Eric Woosley; Ahmed Aly; Raymond Chavez
Subject: PDEV19-019 - DPR #1 - 3210 E Merrill Ave - Utilities Comments (#5943)

Hello Jeanie, 
 
OMUC has No Comments on this submittal.  
Note: if there are any changes and a resubmittal of the plans, please send OMUC a copy for review.  
 
Let me know if you have any questions. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Raymond C. 
 

 
1425 South Bon View Avenue 
Ontario, CA 91761 
Ph: 909‐395‐2603 
Fx: 909‐395‐2608 
 

Item E - 46 of 47



X
X

Broadband Operations      Anna Vaca               Sr. Systems Analyst            4/9/2019

Item E - 47 of 47


	AGENDA
	June 17, 2019
	Scott Murphy, Executive Director, Development Agency
	John P. Andrews, Executive Director, Economic Development
	Fire Marshal Paul Ehrman, Fire Department

	20190617_Item A-Minutes.pdf
	BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT
	BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT
	STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT
	PUBLIC COMMENTS
	CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS
	signature.pdf
	BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT
	BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT
	STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT
	PUBLIC COMMENTS
	CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS


	20190617_Item D-PMTT19-001, PDEV19-004.pdf
	20190617 File No. PMTT19-001, PDEV19-004 DAB ^03 COA PMTT depts.pdf
	Conditions of Approval for PM 1999 and PDEV19-004 6-17-19
	CD2019-004_PDEV19-004_PMTT19-001
	PMTT19-001 Adv Planning No Comments_03-04-19
	PMTT19-001 Bldg COA
	PMTT19-001 Fire Conditions 19-01-31
	PMTT19-001 PD Comments

	20190617 File No. PMTT19-001, PDEV19-004 DAB ^06 COA PDEV depts.pdf
	Conditions of Approval for PM 1999 and PDEV19-004 6-17-19
	PDEV19-004 Rev1 Landscape COA_06-04-19
	CD2019-004_PDEV19-004_PMTT19-001
	PDEV19-004 Adv Planning No Comments_03-04-19
	PDEV19-004 Fire Conditions  01-31-19
	PDEV19-004 PD COA_01-11-19
	PDEV19-004 Bldg COA_01-15-19


	20190617_Item E-PDEV19-019, PCUP19-007.pdf
	20190617 File No. PDEV19-019, PCUP19-007 DAB ^03 COA PCUP Depts.pdf
	CD2019-027_PDEV19-019_PCUP19-007
	PCUP19-007 - PD Comments - Non Stealth Cell Site
	PCUP19-007 Eng
	PCUP19-007 Fire Comments 4-11-19
	PCUP19-007 Landscape memo
	PCUP19-007 Verizon Tower 3120 E Merrill Ave Approved no comments-04092019

	20190617 File No. PDEV19-019, PCUP19-007 DAB ^06 COA PDEV Depts.pdf
	CD2019-027_PDEV19-019_PCUP19-007
	PDEV19-019 Landscape memo
	PDEV19-019 Landscape Comments
	PDEV19-019 Fire Conditions_05-21-19
	PDEV19-019 bldg no comments_04-03-19
	PDEV19-019 Eng Conditons
	PDEV19-019 OMUC No Comments_04-11-19
	PDEV19-019 Verizon Tower 3120 E Merrill Ave Approved no comments-04092019





